
1 
 

Committee Administrator: Andrew Seaman 
Tel: 01884 234229 

Email: aseaman@middevon.gov.uk 
This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk 

Mid Devon District Council 
 

Standards Committee 
 

Wednesday, 8 February 2023 at 6.00 pm 
Phoenix Chambers, Phoenix House, Tiverton 

 
Next ordinary meeting 

Date Not Specified at this time  
 

Please Note: This meeting will take place at Phoenix House and 
members of the Public and Press are able to attend via Zoom. If you 
are intending to attend in person please contact the committee clerk 
in advance, in order that numbers of people can be appropriately 
managed in physical meeting rooms. 
 
 
Join the Zoom meeting here 
 
Meeting ID: 816 8385 1505 
Passcode: 146308 
 
Join by Skype for Business 
https://us06web.zoom.us/skype/81683851505  
 
 

Membership 
 
Cllr Mrs F J Colthorpe  
Cllr R M Deed  
Cllr C J Eginton  
Cllr C R Slade  
Cllr Mrs E J Slade  
Cllr Mrs M E Squires  
Cllr L D Taylor  
Cllr Mrs N Woollatt  
Cllr A Wyer  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

http://www.middevon.gov.uk/
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81683851505?pwd=d3hOS2k4N0dqREQzQVp2OVJPZjNvUT09
https://us06web.zoom.us/skype/81683851505


2 
 

Committee Administrator: Andrew Seaman 
Tel: 01884 234229 

Email: aseaman@middevon.gov.uk 
This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk 

A G E N D A 
 

Members are reminded of the need to make declarations of interest prior to any 
discussion which may take place 
 
1   Apologies and Substitute Members   

To receive any apologies for absence and notices of appointment of 
Substitute Members (if any). 
 

2   Public Question Time   
To receive any questions relating to items on the Agenda from members 
of the public and replies thereto. 
 

3   Minutes  (Pages 5 - 8) 
To consider whether to approve the minutes as a correct record of the 
meeting held on 19 October 2022. 
 

4   Declarations of Interest Under the Code of Conduct   
To record any interests on agenda matters. 
 

5   Chairman's Annoucments   
To receive any announcements the Chairman of the Committee may 
wish to make. 
 

6   Task and Finish Group (Council Procedure Rules Review)   
(Pages 9 - 72) 
 

7   Update from the District Solicitor & Monitoring Officer   
To receive a verbal update from the District Solicitor & Monitoring Officer 
on any amendments to the Constitution. 
 

8   Motion 582 (Concillor A Wilce - 10 October 2022)   
The following motion has been passed to the Standards Committee from 
Council for consideration and report. 
 
This Council RESOLVES that the Standards Committee is tasked 
to: 
  
1. Review the Hybrid Meetings Protocol, and also consider whether or not it 

should form part of the Constitution; and 
 

2. Consider whether any formal proceedings of the Council should be held 
online: 

 that are required to be ‘open to the public’ or ‘held in public’; or, 

 where members are required to ‘attend’ or be ‘present’; or,  

 where any notice that is required to be given that must specify the 
‘place’ where those proceedings are to be conducted; 

 
And to make recommendations to Council, accordingly. 

 

http://www.middevon.gov.uk/


3 
 

Committee Administrator: Andrew Seaman 
Tel: 01884 234229 

Email: aseaman@middevon.gov.uk 
This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk 

9   Complaints   
To receive a verbal update from the Monitoring Officer with regard to 
any on-going complaints being dealt with.   
 

10   Identification of items for the next meeting   
Members are asked to note that the following items are already 
identified in the work programme for the next meeting: 
 

 Annual report of the Monitoring Officer 
 

 
 

Stephen Walford 
Chief Executive 

Tuesday, 31 January 2023 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Meeting Information 
 
From 7 May 2021, the law requires all councils to hold formal meetings in 
person. The Council will enable all people to continue to participate in meetings 
via Zoom.  
 
If you want to ask a question or speak, email your full name to  
Committee@middevon.gov.uk by no later than 4pm on the day before the 
meeting. This will ensure that your name is on the list to speak and will help us 
ensure that you are not missed. Notification in this way will ensure the meeting 
runs as smoothly as possible. 
 
Please note that a reasonable amount of hardcopies at the meeting will be 
available, however this is a limited number. If you are attending the meeting and 
would like a hardcopy of the agenda we encourage that you notify Member  
Services in advance of the meeting to ensure that a hardcopy is available. 
Otherwise, copies of the agenda can be found on our website. 
 
If you would like a copy of the Agenda in another format (for example in large 
print) please contact Andrew Seaman on: aseaman@middevon.gov.uk 
 
Public Wi-Fi is available in all meeting rooms. 

http://www.middevon.gov.uk/
mailto:Committee@middevon.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Standards Committee – 19 October 2022 1 

MID DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
MINUTES of a MEETING of the STANDARDS COMMITTEE held on 19 October 
2022 at 6.00 pm 
 
Present   
Councillors: Mrs F J Colthorpe, C J Eginton, C R Slade, Mrs E J Slade, 

Mrs M E Squires, Mrs N Woollatt and S J Clist 
 

Apologies  
Councillor(s): 
 

R M Deed and L D Taylor 
 

Also Present  
Councillor(s): B G J Warren 

 
Also Present  
Officer(s):  Andrew Seaman (Member Services Manager) and Maria 

De Leiburne (Interim Monitoring Officer) 
 

 
1 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN - CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNCIL IN THE CHAIR  

 
The Chairman of the Council invited nominations for the election of a Chairman for 
the municipal year 2022/23.  
 
Cllr C Eginton MOVED, seconded by Cllr M Squires that Cllr E Slade be elected 
Chairman of the Committee for the municipal year 2022/23.  
 
It was therefore:  
 
RESOLVED that Cllr E Slade be elected Chairman of the Committee for the 
municipal year 2022/23. 
 

2 ELECTION OF VICE CHAIRMAN  
 
Cllr C Eginton MOVED, seconded by Cllr C Slade that Cllr R M Deed be elected Vice 
Chairman of the Committee for the municipal year 20022/23.  
 
It was therefore:  
 
RESOLVED that Cllr R M Deed be elected Vice Chairman of the Committee for the 
municipal year 2022/23. 
 

3 APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS  
 
Apologies were received from Cllr R Deed and Cllr L D Taylor who was substituted 
by Cllr S Clist. 
 

4 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  
 
None received.  
 

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

Standards Committee – 19 October 2022 2 

5 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT  
 
Members were reminded of the need to make declarations of interest when  
necessary. 
 

6 MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the previous meeting were approved as a true record and signed by 
the Chairman. 
 
(Cllr S Clist Abstained) 
 

7 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCMENTS  
 
The Chairman had no announcements to make. 
 

8 TASK AND FINISH GROUP (COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES REVIEW)  
 
The Committee were presented a report which outlined a task and finish group’s 
recommendations on changes to the constitution. The Chair opened the floor to 
Members who raised the following points/questions:  
 

 A Member raised that they had requested for a document from a constituent 

be circulated to Committee Members, which raised points and questions that 

related to the report. In addition, the Member raised that appendix b had not 

been labelled. Concern was raised that the amendments had not included 

tracked changes and so a direct comparison to what had been changed could 

not be compared. Furthermore, they noted that other changes had been made 

that were not mentioned in the report.  

 

The Interim Monitoring Officer explained that appendix b had been included in 

the report and was found from page 27 and should have been marked as 

such. Unfortunately, tracked changes for these recommendations were not 

available. The Monitoring Officer was happy to take the report away and to 

prepare a tracked changed version for the next standards committee in 

February. 

 

 A point was raised by a Member of the Committee that because this report 

had been delayed, would it be more appropriate for these recommendations to 

be decided by the new administration in the next municipal year. 

 

 An invited Member raised that they were on the task and finish group and 

noted that there was a need for the changes to be cross checked and a lot of 

clarity needed on the report presented. 

 

 A member of the Committee highlighted that it was unfortunate that this report 

had passed from one Monitoring Officer to another, in addition, if this was left 

to the new administration, this process may be restarted from the beginning 

and that this should be the starting point when a lot of work had already been 

undertaken.  

 

Page 6



 

Standards Committee – 19 October 2022 3 

 A Member added that there was a risk of a future administration undoing or 

changing the work of a previous administration. In addition they wanted to 

know whether the recommendations should be deliberated or to wait until the 

report had been revised.  

 

The interim Monitoring Officer suggested that revised report with tracked 

changes could be presented to the Committee at the next scheduled meeting, 

with any recommendations sent to the next Full Council.  

 

 A Member noted that it would be preferred for the report to be deferred and 

presented back to the Committee with the tracked changes.  

 
Cllr N Woollatt MOVED, seconded by Cllr S Clist that the Committee deferred this 
report to the next scheduled Committee meeting so that it included tracked changes. 
 
It was therefore:  
 
RESOLVED That the report be deferred to the next Standards Committee.  
 
(Proposed by Cllr N Woollatt and seconded by Cllr S Clist) 
 

9 COMPLAINTS  
 
 The Chair Invited the Monitoring Officer to provide an update on complaints, the 
Monitoring Officer highlighted the following: 
 

 That the interim Monitoring Officer was in the process of reviewing these 

complaints and noted that three were outstanding that needed to be reviewed 

by an independent person. More information could be provided at the next 

scheduled Committee meeting.   

 

RESOLVED: That the update be noted.  
 

10 START TIME OF MEETINGS  
 
There was a need for the committee to consider the start times of meetings, it was 
AGREED that the committee continued to meet at 6.00pm for the remainder of the 
municipal year. 
 
(Cllr C Eginton proposed and seconded by Cllr N Woollatt.) 
 

11 IDENTIFICATION OF ITEMS FOR THE NEXT MEETING  
 
It was suggested that the following items be added to the agenda for the next 
meeting of the committee to be held on 8 February 2023: 
 

 The report of the Task and Finish Group (Council Procedure Rules Review) 

 Complaints 

 For agreed motions and minor changes that sought to change the constitution 

be presented to the Standards Committee. 

 

Page 7



 

Standards Committee – 19 October 2022 4 

 
(The meeting ended at 6.35 pm) CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 8



 
 

 

Mid Devon District Council  
STANDARDS TASK & FINISH GROUP  

(Council Procedure Rules Review)  
 

 
Findings and Recommendations Report  

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
1. The Task & Finish Group recommends to the Standards Committee (for 

recommendation onto full Council) that the following amendments be made to 
the Constitution:  
 
(a) The Council Procedure Rule 25.2 be suspended to allow the following 

amendments to be made to the Constitution at its next meeting.   
(b) Subject to any further changes to recommendations (c), (d) and (g) 

below, the Council Procedure Rules be amended as outlined in 
Appendix B to this report.   

(c) The Council Procedure Rules regarding Member Questions be 
amended as set out in Appendix B Rule 10. 

(d) The Council Procedure Rules regarding Public Questions be amended 
as set out in Appendix B Rule 8. 

(e) Members’ Business remain on full Council but Members be asked to 
take account of the guidance on its use set out in this report at 
paragraph 4.4.  

(f) The requirement for the Planning Committee to consider an Implications 
Report (if it proposes to determine an application contrary to policy and 
officer recommendation) before decision confirmed, be removed. 

(g) The rules on Substitute Members be amended so that trained 
substitutes may come from any group where there is no other trained 
Member in the permanent Members’ political group.  

(h) The practice at full Council for Chairs to have to read out minutes of 
each committee (including PDGs and Cabinet) be stopped. 

 
2. The Task & Finish Group recommends to the Standards Committee (for its 

resolution) that Motion 577 not be supported. 
 

Report Detail 
 

1. Introduction 
 
1.1 The Task and Finish Group (“T&FG”) was set up by its parent Standards 

Committee on 9 February 2022 to review the Council’s Procedure Rules 
(“CPRs”).  All group leaders1 and a Standards Committee representative 
were appointed to the T&FG. The Group has been chaired by Cllr Eginton.  
 

                                                 
1 Cllr Eginton (Conservative) April to May 2022 and Chair of T&FG; Cllr Deed (Independents Group); Cllr 
Evans (Conservative) Feb to April 2022; Cllr Clist, Deputy Leader (Lib Dems); Cllr Lloyd (Greens); Cllr 
Warren (Non Aligned Group) 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



 
 

 

1.2 The CPRs are set out in the Constitution Part 4, Section 12.  Although the 
CPRs were the focus, the Panel noted that there are various other 
procedure rules covering different meetings and processes for the 
Council’s member decision making and also that some matters raised for 
consideration did not form part of the CPRs.  Consequently it has 
commented on procedural matters beyond the CPRs where it considered 
appropriate to do so without detracting from its terms of reference3.   
 

1.3 The group also sought the views of other Members.  The Chair of the 
Planning participated in the discussion on proposed changes to the 
Planning Committee.  His investigations into the manner in which other 
councils’ planning committees operated was welcome.  In undertaking its 
review the Group also sought clarification on Motion 5774 from the mover 
of the motion5.  Following on from the T&FG’s preliminary findings on 1 
April 2021, the T&FG requested that each group leader6 consult their own 
groups, to seek their group’s views of the T&FG’s proposed 
recommendations and identify any other issues for consideration.  No other 
issues or objections were identified beyond those included in Appendix A. 
 

1.4 The T&FG has considered all representations made to it before reaching 
its final recommendations which are set out in this report.  The 
recommendations are supported by the Members of the T&FG 
unanimously with the exception of Recommendation 2 (Motion 577) which 
the Non-Aligned Group Leader considered should be accepted.  
 

2. Current Council Procedure Rules 
 
2.1 The T&FG noted that the CPRs cover the procedures applicable to full 

Council meetings but also some elements of the other committees and 
Policy Development Groups. Where other rules apply (being ones specific to 
specified committees or PDGs) these are listed below for information.  

 
Full Council  All Council Procedure (Rules 1 to 27) 

Cabinet Council Procedure Rules 5-8, 11, 16.1 (other than 16.4 and 16.5) , 19, 20.1, 21 - 25  
All Cabinet Procedure Rules (Rules 1 – 3)  

Scrutiny  
 

Council Procedure Rules 4 – 8, 11, 16.1 (other than 16.4 and 16.5), 19, 20.1, 21 - 25  
Scrutiny Committee, Audit Committee, Standards Committee and Policy Development 
Group Procedure Rules (1 - 3, 5 – 7, 10 - 21, 23 – 26) 

PDGs Scrutiny Committee, Audit Committee, Standards Committee and Policy Development 
Group Procedure Rules (1 - 2, 4 - 6, 8, 10, 12, 14 - 15, 18, 22, 23)  

Audit  Scrutiny Committee, Audit Committee, Standards Committee and Policy Development 
Group Procedure Rules (1 – 2, 5 – 6, 8, 10, 12, 14, 26) 

Standards 
 

Scrutiny Committee, Audit Committee, Standards Committee and Policy Development 
Group Procedure Rules (1 - 2, 5 - 6,  9 – 10)  

Planning  Council Procedure Rules 5-8, 11, 16.1 (other than 16.4 and 16.5) , 19, 20.1, 21 – 25 

 
                                                 
2 See Constitution - MIDDEVON.GOV.UK 
3 Agenda for Standards Committee on Wednesday, 9th February, 2022, 6.00 pm - MIDDEVON.GOV.UK 
4 A Motion “to improve public accountability and to address the inequality of rights of Members of the Council, 
when compared to members of the public. This Council resolves that: When an enquiry is made by a Member 
at any formal meeting (verbally, or in writing) and a substantive answer is not given at that meeting, a written 
response shall be sent to the enquiring member within 10 days. Wherever possible, any written questions 
submitted in the absence of the Member shall be submitted in advance of the meeting, but a failure to do so 
will not invalidate that enquiry. A copy of the question(s) and answer(s) will be circulated to members of the 
committee (or Full Council) and will also attached to the minutes”.  
5 See Appendix A 
6 This includes the Deputy Group Leader for the Liberal Democrats. 

Page 10

https://www.middevon.gov.uk/your-council/councillors-democracy/constitution/
https://democracy.middevon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=143&MId=1467


 
 

 

2.2 The T&FG recognised that as a whole the CPRs were not always easy to 
follow and that in itself had created some confusion in the rules as was 
apparent in the Scrutiny Committee in February 2022.  The rules have 
developed overtime and in response to for example ad hoc amendments 
having been made overtime whether by individual motions or 
organisational or legislative changes which did not take account of other 
rules, some inconsistencies and gaps have crept into the CPRS.  
Consequently, on considering all the rules, the T&FG concluded the rules 
should be redrafted in their entirety as set out in Appendix B.  With the 
exceptions set out below, the amendments do not materially change the 
existing rules.  It is considered that the redraft serves to make the rules 
easier to follow by for example use of sub-headings, more consistency in 
wording and grouping of issues. 

 
2.3 As indicated above, the T&FG also considered in detailed parts of the rules 

which have raised particular concerns in recent times.  Amendments to 
these rules were highlighted to the political groups. Should any of these 
recommendations of the T&FG not be resolved, the Monitoring Officer will 
make appropriate amendments to Appendix B.  
 

2.4 For completeness, the T&FG is aware that the Council’s current 
Procedures Rules do not allow amendments to be made without such 
having been moved and stood adjourned (without discussion) to the next 
ordinary meeting of the Council7.  This rule seeks to avoid ad hoc 
amendments being made ‘on the hoof’ to the CPRs.  However, in 
instances where the changes have been fully considered in advance (as in 
the current case), this rules simply delays the Council’s decision making.  
To avoid this unnecessary delay, it is therefore recommended that the 
relevant CPR be suspended for the meeting of full Council.  As this 
technical requirement is an example of where the rules serve no useful 
purpose, the redraft of the CPRs in Appendix B accommodates an 
amendment to the relevant rule to ensure that future proposed CPR 
amendments which have been the subject of detailed consideration by the 
Standards Committee (as the committee responsible for overseeing the 
Constitution) there is requirement for the moved amendment to stand 
adjourned8.   
 

Recommendation 1(a): The Council Procedure Rule 25.2 be suspended to allow 
the following amendments to be made to the Constitution at its next meeting. 
 
Recommendation 1(b): the Council Procedure Rules be re-drafted as outlined in 
Appendix B. 

 
3. Members’ Questions 

  
3.1  The T&FG reflected on the current rules in response to some, albeit limited, 

concerns about Members’ ability to raise questions in Cabinet and / or that 
the public had more rights than Members to ask questions of a committee or 
the Cabinet. It also considered the specific representations by the mover of 

                                                 
7 Existing CPR 25.2 
8 See Appendix B at Rule 20.2 

Page 11



 
 

 

Motion 577 which Council had referred to the Standards Committee for 
consideration.9  

 
3.2  The group appreciated from the detailed advice sent to all Members10  in 

February 2022 that all Members are entitled to speak at full Council; all 
Members may at full Council ask questions in line with the existing CPR 13; 
and that councillors who were not members of a particular body did not have 
any general rights to speak (or therefore ask questions) but could seek the 
Chair’s agreement to do so. It was noted that in addition, Cabinet members 
could attend Scrutiny Committee meetings where their decisions were 
‘called in’, for the purpose of explaining the decisions under review (but 
could be asked by the committee to leave11); and when a PDG is 
considering policy development and review matters, again given their role, 
relevant Cabinet members were (and should be) allowed to speak12.  

 
3.3  It was also noted that the provisions regarding non-member requests of 

chairpersons to “speak” proceed on the basis that the questioner is present 
at the meeting. It was recognised that the public had a right to ask questions 
only if they were present (remotely or in person) at meetings. Similar to 
Members’ position, in their absence, the public could ask the Chair to read 
out their question, but the Chair was not required to do so.  

 
3.4  The group appreciated that as Members are appointed by their groups to 

committees (or in the case of ungrouped members direct), as a result of a 
resolution of full Council, it followed that they only had rights to speak (and 
vote) if they were appointed to that particular body. If that were not the case, 
potentially all Members would be able to participate in all committees, 
potentially creating full Council style participation but for the absence of a 
right to vote.  

 
3.5  After considering the various views on the matter, the T&FG concluded that 

the existing provisions were largely appropriate. The T&FG were satisfied 
that non-members’ involvement in meetings should remain a matter for 
Chair’s discretion. In response to concerns in the Motion about Member 
Questions not always being answered in public at meetings, the group 
considered that it would be helpful to extend the advance notice requirement 
by one working day – this is currently included in the relevant redrafted rule.  
 

Recommendation 2: Motion 577 regarding Member Questions not be accepted. 
 
Recommendation 1(c): Council Procedure Rules regarding Public Questions be 
amended as set out in Appendix B Rule 10.         

 
4.  Public Questions  
 
4.1  The T&FG considered that the right of the public to ask questions (as was 

the case at full Council) should not be extended to all meetings as 
proposed. This view was formed because (with the exception of Planning 

                                                 
9 See Appendix A Document 1 
10 Letter from MO to all Members dated 11 Feb 2022 
11 Existing Committee Procedure Rule 19(h) 
12 Existing Committee Procedure Rule 18(a) 

Page 12



 
 

 

Committee) the excluded committees were limited to those performing a 
quasi-judicial function (i.e. licensing and standards subcommittee 
hearings).  

 
4.2  The group noted from research undertaken by the Planning Chair and 

experience across the country, that it was not common place to have 
public questions at Planning Committee. Instead, as was most often the 
case for planning committees, interested parties had a specific right to 
speak. It was noted that the additional ‘public question time’ right 
potentially prejudiced planning applicants and prolonged meetings. The 
rights were only available to residents or businesses based in the district, 
thereby not open to applicants who were looking to develop in the district 
for the first time. Further the rights were mainly used by objectors to make 
lengthy representations where questions were simply added at the end of 
speeches, thereby prolonging meetings; with ‘questioners’ using the 
opportunity to cover points that should have (or had already) been made 
by them in the course of the statutory consultation period. In support of 
retaining public questions for Planning Committee, the group noted that on 
occasion new points were raised by members of the public, but the main 
advantage of retaining public questions was that the committee was seen 
to listen to the public and take account of their views on policy and material 
planning considerations before planning applications were determined.  

 
4.3  More generally, it was also recognised that it was often impossible for the 

Chair (to whom questions were in fact directed and should respond) and 
difficult for officers (who often answered for the Chair) to answer public 
questions in committee if advance notice had not been given of the 
questions.  

 
4.4  After considerable debate (and a change from its preliminary view) the 

group considers that the Council should retain public questions at Planning 
Committee, with some changes to help address the understandable 
concerns and improve the use of public questions in the decision making 
process as well as to effectively engage the public in council work. The 
proposed redraft of the rule (see Appendix B Rule 8) seeks to improve the 
general understanding of the rules in the interests of transparency and 
openness. Further, to help ensure questions can more likely be 
satisfactorily answered in public at meetings, it recommends that the 
informal requirement for advance notice of questions from the public be 
formalised. In response to concerns about how questions have been used 
in Planning Committee, although it first concluded that there should be a 
limit to the number of words to 100, to avoid questions becoming lost in a 
lengthy submission as is currently prevalent in Planning Committee 
particularly by objectors to planning applications, on reflection it didn’t 
consider such would assist.  

 

Recommendation 1(d): Council Procedure Rule regarding Public Questions be 
amended as set out in Appendix B Rule 8. 

 

Page 13



 
 

 

5.   Members’ Business  
 
5.1  Some concerns had been expressed about the use of Members’ Business 

(a standard item on full Council agendas) to make comments which were 
for example, misleading at others’ expense nor matters over which the 
Council had powers, knowing that there was no right to discuss or respond 
to the points made at the meeting. It was also noted that overtime such a 
standard agenda item at full council meetings had become less common 
place amongst councils.  

 
5.2  In terms of considering why the item should remain, the group recognised 

that the item provided an opportunity for Members to raise good news and 
points of general public interest; and further that the provisos (e.g. time 
limits, number of questions, exclusion of matters already covered at the 
same meeting) were there to ensure that this standard agenda item was 
manageable.  

 
5.3  The group concluded that with some informal guidance for Members from 

the Monitoring Officer and ‘firm and fair’ chairmanship, concerns raised 
about the potential misuse of Members’ Business would be sufficient but 
the matter would be kept under review.  

 
5.4 In considering what to include in that guidance the following points are 

considered relevant, particularly given that there is no right to respond at 
the time to comments even ones which may inadvertently or otherwise 
amount to a breach of the Code of Conduct (e.g. by bringing the office or 
Council into disrepute).  

 
(a)  The ambit of Members’ Business is set out in the Council’s 

Procedure Rules.   
(b)  Members may together use the time permitted, to each make 

(only) one statement or raise one question, lasting no more than 
two minutes each.  

(c)  Members’ Business can only be included on the full Council 
agenda for up to 15 minutes in total and so no-one group of 
Members should seek to monopolise that time – the Chair may for 
example use his discretion to select which Members may speak in 
that time or stop Members who misuse the agenda item.  

(d)  Each statement / question may only concern a matter over which 
the Council has powers or duties or which affects the District; and 
has not been otherwise before the Council for consideration at the 
same meeting.  

(e) The topics which may be covered in the relevant statement or 
question is wide. However the key thing to note is that the matter 
concerns council business not personal or political group business.  

(f)  The use of Members’ Business must be compatible with other 
parts of the Constitution in particular the high standards of conduct 
expected of elected members. Members must not for example 
bring the Council into disrepute or be disrespectful to others.  

(g)  Whilst ensuring that the item doesn’t turn into a debate in itself, the 
Chair may exercise his discretion to rule that inappropriate 

Page 14



 
 

 

comments be withdrawn by the relevant member, an apology given 
to the Council, or for a short point of correction or clarification to be 
made in response.  

 

Recommendation 1(e): Members’ Business should remain on full Council 
agendas but Members be asked to take account of the guidance on its use in 
paragraph 4.4. 

 
6.  Planning Committee Procedures  
 
6.1  The following procedural matters specific to the Planning Committee whilst 

outside of the CPRs were identified for consideration during the T&FG’s 
meetings:  

 
(a)  Value of public questions with separate public rights to speak in 

committee given quasi-judicial role of Planning Committee;  

(b) Value of implication reports;  

(c) Potential conflict between ward member vs committee planning 
interests;  

(d)  Concerns about length of meetings and how meetings might be 
more concise without adversely affecting quality of decision 
making.  

 
6.2  Item (a) was raised due to concerns about the procedures applicable to 

planning committee meetings.  As noted in Section 4 above, the 
appropriateness of retaining Public Questions (given the specific public 
speaking rights at committee) were considered in detail.  

 
6.3  Turning to item (b) the group had experience of the use of Implications 

Report in Planning Committee, which sought to provide a cooling off period 
for the committee to reflect on the grounds for determining an application 
contrary to policy and officer recommendation before a decision was 
confirmed. It did not form part of the CPRs but was a well-established 
process at the Council. It was reported that in practice particularly in the 
last 12 months or so, the reports had only delayed decision making and the 
committee had not changed its view, it being considered as a result by the 
senior planning officers and committee that there was no value in 
continuing with the practice. The members of the group noted with 
appropriate advice that it was reasonable to expect the costs implications 
to be advised upon and considered reasons to be identified by the advising 
officers and the committee at the meeting when applications are debated. 
Furthermore the group noted that in the event that it emerged 
subsequently that there is no reasonable prospect of the appeal being 
successfully defended, a further timely committee report may still be 
requested by the committee to help minimise the costs’ risks.  

 
6.4 Regarding (c) it was highlighted that members of the Planning Committee 

were undertaking a quasi-judicial role, rather than a ward representation 
role. There would often be conflicts between those roles (e.g. where 
planning policy supported a development but local residents who the 
member was duty bound to represent, objected). This had been evident on 

Page 15



 
 

 

several occasions at the Council. In response to such, it was noted that 
some authorities discouraged or prevented such Members from voting in 
planning committees. Such Members instead spoke as ward members, 
having a specific time allocated to them to do so before the committee 
debated the application and did not participate as a committee member. 
Concern had also been raised that ward members who were not members 
of the committee were prejudiced by not being a member of the committee, 
as they had less rights (to speak) on an application than committee 
members, therefore prejudicing their residents in comparison to those 
residents whose member was on the committee.  

 
6.5  Although the T&FG recognised the clear case for changing the rules, it 

considered that Members fully appreciated the potential for conflict and the 
requirement in the Code not to use their position to improperly advantage 
or disadvantage another. Consequently, it was considered that such was 
sufficient to ensure that all members of the committee upheld their 
overriding responsibility to promote district planning interests above their 
local ward interests when sitting on the Planning Committee. In conclusion 
the group did not consider any change was needed.  

 
6.6 The group touched upon a variety of other changes that might help cut 

down on the length of meetings where such did not prejudice the quality of 
the debate in Planning Committee. These included use of ‘call in powers’ 
of Members and the number of deferrals arising from the view that 
substantive information was not provided in sufficient time for Members to 
consider such or new information was needed to address concerns raised 
in committee. These matters were ones which concerned the operation of 
planning process and have not as such been considered by the T&FG. 
Whilst noting some issues with the current delegation to the Development 
Management Manager and Director of Place, it considers that Members 
would welcome a briefing by the Development Management Manager / 
Head of Place on the use of ward member call in of applications to 
committee.  

 

Recommendation 1(f): The requirement for the Planning Committee to consider 
an Implications Report (if it proposes to determine an application contrary to policy 
and officer recommendation) before decision confirmed, be removed.  

 
7. Miscellaneous Amendments to the CPRs 

 
7.1 In considering the rules on Committee Substitutes, the group recognised 

that it was not always possible for members of small groups to identify a 
replacement where training was a requirement particularly in planning, but 
also other quasi-judicial committees.  Consequently, the group proposes 
that in such instances substitutes may come from other political groups. 
 

7.2 It was noted that the historic practice to present Committee and Cabinet 
minutes to full Council was not a specific requirement for full Council 
agendas.  The group considered that agendas should still include all the 
minutes.  This will ensure that questions may continue to be raised of the 
Chairs by Members without notice.  

 
Page 16



 
 

 

Recommendation 1(g): The rules on Substitute Members be amended so that 
trained substitutes may come from any group where there is no other trained 
Member in the permanent Members’ political group.13  
 
Recommendation 1(h): The practice of full Council for Chairs to have to read out 
minutes of each committee (including PDGs and Cabinet) be stopped. 

 
 10 June 2022 

 
District Solicitor and Monitoring Officer  

on behalf of the Task & Finish Group 

                                                 
13 See Appendix B Rule 3.1(b) 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 APPENDIX A – CONSULTEE RESPONSES TO REVIEW  

 

Document 1 
 

From: Cllr Ashley Wilce <awilce@middevon.gov.uk>  
Sent: 21 March 2022 09:29 
To: Karen Trickey <ktrickey@middevon.gov.uk> 
Subject: Re: Questions re your Motion 577 to be returned by 27 March 
 

Good Morning Ms Trickey 
 
Please see insertions 
Regards, 
Cllr Ashley Wilce 
TOTALLY Independent Member for Cullompton North 

 
From: Karen Trickey 
Sent: 13 March 2022 08:48 
To: Cllr Ashley Wilce 
Subject: Questions re your Motion 577 to be returned by 27 March  
  
Dear Cllr Wilce 

  
I refer to your motion “to improve public accountability and to address the inequality of 
rights of Members of the Council, when compared to members of the public” for which you 
requested that the Council resolve: 
  

1.      When an enquiry is made by a Member at any formal meeting (verbally, or in writing) 
and a substantive answer is not given at that meeting, a written response shall be sent 
to the enquiring member within 10 days.  

2.      Wherever possible, any written questions submitted in the absence of the Member 
shall be submitted in advance of the meeting, but a failure to do so will not invalidate 
that enquiry.  

3.      A copy of the question(s) and answer(s) will be circulated to members of the 
committee (or Full Council) and will also attached to the minutes.” 

  
The Task & Finish Group (Council Procedure Rules) has considered your motion regarding 
changes to Member Questions within the context of the relevant Council Procedure Rule 
which of course only applies to full Council.  The only point covered in your motion which 
has yet to be accommodated in some form within that context is the attachment of the 
question and answer to the minutes of full Council.  The group has asked that I contact you 
to request that you clarify what you intended in your motion, it being recognised of course 
that your motion goes further than member questions at full Council given the references to 
“any formal meeting” and also “members of the committee (or Full Council)”.   
  
I have set out some specific questions which might help you to explain what you intended 
and which will in any event assist the group’s final consideration of your motion particularly 

Page 19



 APPENDIX A – CONSULTEE RESPONSES TO REVIEW  

within the context of Cabinet, PDG and committee meeting rules.  Please would you let me 
have your response (whether to the specific queries below or otherwise) asap but no later 
than 27th March, so that I can consider them and relay them to the group at its next 
meeting on 1st April.  
  
Questions:  Regarding the application of your motion to “any formal meeting” it is 
understood that you are referring to public Cabinet, PDGs and committee meetings (for 
which unlike full Council meetings, there aren’t specific rights for any / all members to ask 
questions).  With that in mind: 

 i.        Were you primarily seeking to ensure that answers to any member questions (not 
substantively answered at the meeting) are attached to the minutes within 10 days (or 
even 10 working days)? 

Yes 

 ii.      Referring to the second numbered point above in your motion, it is understood you were 
only referring to a question from a member who is not at the meeting.  You refer 
understandably to (i) the question being in writing and (ii) that written question being 
submitted in advance of the meeting.  However, you pre-fix it with only “whenever 
possible”.  Could you explain the situations you had / have in mind where any written 
questions submitted by an absent member would not be submitted in advance to the 
Chair?  If you meant something else, please explain. 

          I did not want the fact that there was no 'notice' (or short notice) of the written question, 
to prevent that question being put, provided that it related to an Agenda item. See Q 
below. 
 
 iii.          Did you intend that the member question and answer (when a substantive answer is 

not given at the meeting), would be attached to the minutes in all cases  i.e. when a 
verbal question (regardless of its content) which is not on notice is raised in the 
meeting, rather than for example simply for written questions on notice? 

Yes, i.e. any question asked publicly, will be answered publicly, however it was put. 

iv.      Would the following wording which could be added to the existing rules which apply to 
Cabinet, PDGs and committee cover what you intended (noting that the group has 
already considered full Council rules): “when a question on an agenda matter is raised 
by a Member at a public meeting which cannot be substantively answered at the 
meeting, a written response shall be provided to the Member (and copied to all 
members of that committee / PDG or the Cabinet) within 10 working days  by the 
Chairman (or such other person as he shall refer the matter) and attached to the 
minutes of the meeting” ?   

No - a response is not necessarily a substantive answer - a dodge that has been frequently 
used in the past.  

If not, is there any other variation to your motion wording which you consider taking 
account of the points of clarification above, would better cover what you intended? 

 The constitution is unclear - do members have an absolute right to submit written 
questions in advance, or are there restrictions; if so, what are the restrictions, please? 
 

Page 20



 APPENDIX A – CONSULTEE RESPONSES TO REVIEW  

Document 2 
 

 

From: Cllr Graeme Barnell <gbarnell@middevon.gov.uk>  
Sent: 11 March 2022 17:15… 
 
Subject: Proposed rules of procedure 
 
 
…. As part of the deliberations of the short life on committee procedures I'm concerned we 
have rules to ensure:- 

1. All members have the right to speak and ask questions at all MDDC meetings at which 
they have right to attend including Cabinet and all policy and advisory committees. 

2.   Members of the public have the right to ask questions at all MDDC meetings at which 
they have right to attend. 

3.   Answers to members questions at all Committees are published either with the 
minutes of subsequently on the MDDC website. 

4.   Access of all members to place an item on the agenda of Scrutiny Committee is not 
diminished. 

5.   Rules are established that allow all members to request agenda items on any meeting 
to which they are entitled to attend. Ditto members of the public. 

Page 21



 APPENDIX A – CONSULTEE RESPONSES TO REVIEW  

 

Document 3 

Current rule 

 

Proposal 

 

Reason(s)  

  
Planning Committee: 
Requirement for 
planning committee to 
consider an 
Implications Report (if 
it proposes to refuse 
an application contrary 
to policy and officer 
recommendation) 
before decision 
confirmed. 

To remove the 
requirement 
 
Agreed 

1. Such reports only serve to delay the determination of the matter as in practice the 
committee never / very rarely changes its decision when considering the Implications 
Report; 

2. With appropriate advice, it is reasonable to expect the costs implications to be advised 
upon and considered reasons to be identified at the meeting when the application is 
debated; or otherwise the application’s determination should be deferred by the 
committee for further consideration and information.  [May need to defer to have sound 
wording for ‘reasons for refusal.’] 

3. In the event that it emerges subsequently that there is no reasonable prospect of the 
appeal being successfully defended, a further committee report may still be considered 
when needed e.g. as happened recently. [But done correctly and more openly and 
transparently.] 

 

All committees (with 
some exceptions e.g. 
licensing, standards 
hearings): 
Right of public to ask 
questions on agenda 
items. 

Retain as is, subject to: 
(i) redraft for public’s 

clarity / ease of 
under-standing  

and  
(ii) to formally confirm 

need for notice  
 
See notes from NAG in 
red italics.  

The T&FG considered that the right should not be extended to all meetings as proposed, given 
that the only excluded committees were limited and appropriately so (e.g. licensing and 
standards subcommittee hearings  etc.). Particular consideration was given to removing the right 
from Planning Committee particularly as: 

1. the questions are used to make representations, which have / or could have been made 
in the course of the public consultation; The public consultation responses could have 
been made many months before and this could be the opportunity for members of public 
to update their views. 

2. it often difficult to answer or understand public questions when no notice has been 
provided of them in advance; 

P
age 22



 APPENDIX A – CONSULTEE RESPONSES TO REVIEW  

3. the questions (which often took the form of long statements of personal opinion) unduly 
prolonged the meetings, without significant benefit to the committee’s consideration, 
complaints having been made by members about the lengthy of some meetings;  This is 
not what has prolonged the meetings as there is a 30 minute time frame for public 
questions.  What has prolonged meetings are too many applications or complicated 
applications on one agenda.  NAG members have put forward the view that ‘Public 
Questions’ should be renamed ‘Questions and Statements by the public.’  There could still 
be the 3 minute limit per speaker and the 30 minutes overall.  The East Devon DC 
Constitution Para 8 is suggested as a particular preferable substitute.  

4. on occasion some questions were clearly inappropriate, including defamatory or offensive 
comments and in the absence of notice, it was difficult for the chair to stop the 
questioner early enough;  This is considered an acceptable risk in the interests of public 
involvement.  It does not happen that often. 

5. the use of public questions at planning committee was not common place for LPAs 
dealing with development control applications.  MDDC should retain Public 
Questions/Statements. 

However, it was recognised that the planning committee was the most well attended public 
meeting and the public valued that right which at times provided the committee with additional 
information pertinent to its consideration of the application.  In order to address the legitimate 
concerns it is proposed to require advance written notice of the question (in line with informal 
requests for such since Covid restrictions and to limit each question to 100 words per question.i  
The majority of NAG members do not agree with a requirement to submit questions in advance 
on agenda items although it could be ‘advice‘ and encouraged.  The 3 minute rule is considered 
sufficient restriction and there is no support for the 100 word limit.   
 

Council Procedure Rule 
summary 

[T&FG proposed change 
of CPRs as at 1 April 
2020] 

Response from Non-Aligned Group as at 18 April (in italics) 

P
age 23



 APPENDIX A – CONSULTEE RESPONSES TO REVIEW  

Full Council:  
Right of members to 
speak and ask 
questions at meetings 
they attend  

Retain as it is subject 
amends for clarity / ease 
of understanding 
See notes under relevant 
section below. 

The T&FG concluded with some redrafting and additions for clarity/ ease of understanding of the 
current right at full council, the rule should be retainedii; and in the case of all other meetings, 
non-members’ involvement in meetings should remain a matter for chair’s discretion subject to 
ward members being able to speak in person at planning committee.  Agreed in principal by most 
but some do feel that any Member should be allowed to speak if they wish to contribute at most 
meetings [Planning excluded except for Ward Members.] 
 

 

  
 
 

 

i Public Questions 
 
0.1 Questions from the Public: Residents, electors or business rate payers of the District shall be entitled to ask questions at a meeting provided that: 

(a) the question(s) are relevant to an item on the Agenda for that meeting; 
(b) all the questions from one body person do not exceed three minutes when read out, nor 100 words for each question;[No support for the word number 

restriction.] 
(c) at least two clear days’ [Is this meant to be two clear working days?  Practicalities – two clear days for Environment PDG on a Tuesday means questions 

would be sent on a Saturday etc. etc.!!!] written notice has been given to the Member Services Manager (via email) of the question(s) to be asked; and 
(d) the questions have not been rejected in accordance with Rule 0.5. 

0.2 Time for Public Questions: Any public questions shall be dealt with at the beginning of the Agenda and limited to 30 minutes provided that the Chairman may 
extend the time, or proceed to the next agenda item within such shorter period if there are no questions or all permitted questions are answered. 

0.3 Attendance: Persons submitting questions must be present (remotely or in person) at the meeting unless the Chairman agrees to address the question in the 
questioner’s absence. 

0.4 Order of Questions: Questions will be asked in the order they have been received.  
0.5 Scope: The Chairman may, following advice from either the Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer or Member Services Manager, [Why the advice from Officers?] 

reject a question giving reasons to the questioner for its rejection if it: 
(a) Is not about a matter for which the Council has a responsibility or which affects the District; 
(b) Is in his/her opinion scurrilous, improper, capricious, irrelevant or otherwise objectionable (e.g. spurious, vexatious); 

                                                 

P
age 24



 APPENDIX A – CONSULTEE RESPONSES TO REVIEW  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
(c) Is substantially the same as a question which has been put at a meeting to which these rules apply in the past six months; 
(d) Requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt information. 

0.6 Supplementary question: At the discretion of the Chairman questioners may ask one supplementary question. 
0.7 Answers to questions 

(a)  The Chairman of the meeting (or at meetings of the Council the appropriate committee chairman), shall respond to all valid questions. 
(b)  Replies to questions may be verbal, in writing or by reference to a published document.   
(c)  Replies which are not provided at the meeting shall be reported to the next relevant meeting and published alongside the draft minutes when available 

and circulated to all Members. 
 
ii Members’ Questions 

 
0.1 Questions without notice: At a meeting of the Council, other than the Annual Meeting, a Member of the Council may ask the Leader, a Cabinet Member or the 

Chairman of a committee any question without notice upon an item of the report of the Cabinet or a committee when that item is being received or under 
consideration by the Council.  Agreed. 

0.2 Questions on notice: A Member may ask the Chairman of the Council, the Leader, a Cabinet Member or the Chairman of any committee any question which: 
(a) concerns the Council’s powers / duties or which otherwise affects the District; 
(b) relates to matters on which the Council has or may determine a policy; This is felt to be too restrictive as there may be legitimate questions members wish 

to raise which might not be a matter of policy. 
(c) the Member has provided written notice of the question to the Chief Executive no later than noon, two clear days preceding the meeting; [Practically 

does this mean noon on the Sunday before a Full Council meeting on the Wednesday?] 
(d) the question has first been discussed at a meeting of the Cabinet or committee and the Member is not satisfied with the adequacy of the answer 

contained in the relevant Minutes; Considered to be too restrictive and could prevent legitimate questions and issues being raised.  Most Councils give 
members the right to ask questions as at (a) above without any restriction that it has previously been discussed.  

and 
(e) the question is not (in the opinion of the Chairman of Council taking account of the advice on the matter from the Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer or 

Member Services Manager): 
(i) scurrilous, improper, capricious, irrelevant or otherwise objectionable (e.g. spurious, vexatious); 
(ii) substantially the same as a question which has been put at a meeting of the Council in the past six months; 
(iii) one which requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt information and the question is not to be raised in closed session; 
(iv) one which contains expressions of opinion; [Are members not entitled to express an opinion as the reason for the question?] or 
(v) one which relates to questions of fact.  
 

0.3 Questions relating to urgent business: A Member of the Council may, with the advance permission of the Chairman, put to him, the Leader, a Cabinet Member 
or the Chairman of any committee any urgent question on notice under paragraph 0.2 without complying with sub paragraph 0.2(c) above, provided that: 
(a)  the Chairman in his absolute discretion is satisfied that the matter raised in the question is of such urgency that compliance with sub paragraph 0.2(c) 

is precluded nor should its consideration be delayed until the next meeting of the Cabinet or appropriate committee; and  

P
age 25



 APPENDIX A – CONSULTEE RESPONSES TO REVIEW  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
(b) a copy of the question has been delivered to the Chief Executive no later than 9am the day before the Council meeting. 

0.4 Order of Questions on notice 
(a)  Questions under Rules 0.2 and 0.3 shall be taken at the appropriate point in the relevant committee report or in the absence of such, at the Members’ 

Questions agenda item. 
(b) Questions and written answers shall be printed in order of receipt and circulated amongst the Members at the commencement of the Council 

meeting. [How or when do the public become aware that their representative has raised such a question?] 
(c) No discussion shall be allowed upon questions or answers save as is permitted under Rules 0.5 - 0.8 below. 

0.5 Form of Response 
(a) The Chief Executive shall arrange for copies of on notice questions and answers to be sent to Members not present at the Meeting of the Council. 
(b) An answer may take the form of: 

 a direct oral answer at the meeting; 

 where the desired information is in a publication of the Council or other published work, a reference to that publication; or 

 where the reply cannot conveniently be given orally, a written answer circulated within 10 working days to the questioner. [Where do other 
members or the public see the answers please?]  

0.6 Supplementary question: One relevant supplementary question to an answer to a question on notice shall be allowed to the original questioner but may be 
disallowed or not answered if the Chairman of the Council considers it in breach of paragraph 0.2(e).  [Should we include that the Chairman should give reasons?] 

0.7 Length of Speeches: A Member asking a question under Rules 0.1 - 0.3 and a Member answering such a question may speak for no longer than three minutes 
unless the Chairman consents to a longer period. 

0.8 Time Allowed for Questions  
(a) The time allowed for consideration of all questions at full Council under Members’ Questions agenda item which are submitted under this Rule 0 [Do 

we have a typo?] shall not, without the consent of the Council exceed 30 minutes. 
(b) At the conclusion of the answer to the question under consideration at the expiry of 30 minutes (or such longer period to which the Council has 

consented) from the time when the first questioner started to speak, the Chairman shall continue with the meeting unless the Council resolves otherwise 
at the meeting. 

(c) Any remaining questions shall be responded to in writing before the next ordinary meeting of the Council with written answers to be forwarded to all 
Members   [What about the public?  Will the questions and answers be published alongside the minutes?] 

 

P
age 26



 Appendix B 
 

Council Procedure Rules 

 

Introduction: 

There are currently 20 procedure rules.  They apply to all meetings of full Council (i.e. 
when all Members of the Council attend as voting members).  Subject to the 
exceptions set out below in Rule 1 or where the rules provides or the context 
otherwise makes clear, they also apply to Cabinet and Committees (which latter term 
for the purposes of these rules, includes their sub-committees and Policy 
Development Groups).   

  

1.  Exceptions of Rules to Committees Meetings 

2.  Full Council 

3.  Substitute Members 

4.  Time Place and Notice of Meetings 

5.  Chairman of the Meeting 

6.  Quorum 

7.  Members’ Business at full Council 

8.  Questions by the Public 

9.  Petitions from the Public 

10.  Questions from Members at full Council 

11.  Motions  

12.  Rules of Debate 

13.  State of District Debate 

14.  Previous Decisions and Motions 

15.  Voting  

16.  Minutes 

17.  Exclusion of the Public 

18.  Members’ Conduct 

19.  Disturbance by the Public 

20.  Suspension and Amendment of Council Procedure Rules 

 
  

Page 27



 Appendix B 
 
 

1. Exceptions of Rules to Committee Meetings 

 

Committee  Rules which don’t apply  

Audit  Members’ Business (Rule 7) 
No motions other than those referred by full Council (Rule 11) 
No restriction on the number of times a member can speak during 
debate (Rule 12) 

Cabinet No appointment of Substitutes (Rule 3) 
Members’ Business (Rule 7) 
No motions other than those referred by full Council (Rule 11) 
No restriction on the number of times a member can speak during 
debate (Rule 12) 

Electoral Review  Members’ Business (Rule 7) 
No motions other than those referred by full Council (Rule 11) 
No restriction on the number of times a member can speak during 
debate (Rule 12) 

Policy 
Development 
Groups (PDGs)  

Members’ Business (Rule 7) 
No motions other than those referred by full Council (Rule 11) 
No restriction on the number of times a member can speak during 
debate (Rule 12) 

Licensing  No appointment of Substitutes for sub-committees (Rule 3) 
Members’ Business (Rule 7) 
Public Questions for sub-committees (Rule 8) 
No motions other than those referred by full Council (Rule 11) 
No restriction on the number of times a member can speak during 
debate (Rule 12) 

Planning  Members’ Business (Rule 7) 
No motions other than those referred by full Council (Rule 11) 
No restriction on the number of times a member can speak during 
debate (Rule 12) 

Regulatory  No appointment of Substitutes for sub-committees (Rule 3) 
Members’ Business (Rule 7) 
Public Questions for sub-committees (Rule 8) 
No motions other than those referred by full Council (Rule 11) 
No restriction on the number of times a member can speak during 
debate (Rule 12) 

Scrutiny  Members’ Business (Rule 7) 
No motions other than those referred by full Council (Rule 11) 
No restriction on the number of times a member can speak during 
debate (Rule 12) 

Standards  No appointment of Substitutes for sub-committees (Rule 3) 
Members’ Business (Rule 7) 
Public Questions for sub-committees (Rule 8) 
No motions other than those referred by full Council (Rule 11) 
No restriction on the number of times a member can speak during 
debate (Rule 12) 

 

 

 

Page 28



 Appendix B 
 
 

2. Full Council  
 
2.1 Annual Meeting 
  
2.1.1 Timing and business:  In a year when there is an ordinary election of 

councillors, the annual meeting will take place within 21 days of the retirement 
(four days after the election) of the outgoing councillors. In any other year, the 
annual meeting will take place in March, April or May. 

 
2.1.2 Business: The annual meeting will: 
 
(a) elect a person to preside if the outgoing Chairman of Council or Vice Chairman 

of the Council is not present; 
(b) elect the Chairman of the Council (subject to the statutory provisions in that 

behalf, a Councillor who is the present Chairman of the Council and has 
completed two consecutive years in such office shall not be eligible for re-
election as Chairman of the Council for the ensuing year); 

(c) elect the Vice Chairman of the Council; 
(d) approve the minutes of the last meeting of the Council; 
(e) receive any announcements from the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive; 
(f) elect the Leader (following the ordinary election of councillors); 
(g) elect the Scrutiny Committee Chairman; 
(h) approve a programme of ordinary meetings of the Council for the year; 

and 
(i) consider any other business set out in the notice convening the meeting. 
 
2.1.3 Appointment of Committees: At the Annual Meeting, the Council meeting 

will: 
 
(a) decide which Committees to establish for the municipal year; 
(b) decide the size and terms of reference for those Committees; 
(c) decide the allocation of seats to political groups in accordance with the political 

balance rules; 
(d) receive nominations of (any) ungrouped councillors to serve on each 

Committee and vote on each appointment 
(e) make appointments to outside bodies except where appointment to those 

bodies has been delegated by the Council or is exercisable only by the Cabinet 
(in respect of Executive functions); 

 
2.2 Ordinary Meetings 
 
2.2.1 Business: The order of business at ordinary meetings will be as follows: 
 
(a) elect a person to preside if the Chairman and Vice Chairman are not present; 
(b) approve the minutes of the last meeting (whether the annual meeting or 

otherwise); 
(c) receive any declarations of interest from Members; 
(d) receive any announcements from the Chairman; 
(e) receive Public Questions (as set out in Rule 8); 

Page 29



 Appendix B 
 

(f)  receive a report from the Leader and receive questions and answers on the 
report; 

(g)   deal with any business remaining from the last Council meeting; 
(h)  receive petitions from members of the public; 
(i)  debate single issues; 
(j)  consider Motions; 
(k)  consider recommendations from the Cabinet; 
(l)  consider any recommendations submitted by the Council’s Committees; 
(m)   receive reports about and receive questions and answers on the business of 

joint arrangements and external organisations; 
(n)   receive Members’ Business (as set out in Rule 7); 
(o)  consider any urgent items of business brought forward at the discretion of the 

Chairman and the reason for urgency must be announced at the meeting and 
recorded in the minutes; 

and 
(p) consider any other business specified in the summons to the meeting. 
 
2.2.2 Variation of Order of Business: Business falling under items 2.2.1 shall not 

be displaced, but subject thereto the order of business may be varied: 
 
(a) by the Chairman at his/her discretion; or 
(b) by a resolution passed on a Motion (which need not be in writing) duly moved 

and seconded, which shall be moved and put without discussion. 
 
2.3 Extraordinary Meetings 
 
2.3.1 Those listed below may request the Proper Officer to call Council meetings in 

addition to Ordinary Meetings: 
 
(a) the Council by resolution; 
(b) the Chairman of the Council; 
(c) the Monitoring Officer; or 
(d) any five Members of the Council if they have signed a requisition presented to the 

Chairman of the Council and he has refused to call a meeting or has failed to call a 
meeting within seven days of the presentation of the requisition. 

 
2.3.2 The business to be conducted at an extraordinary meeting shall be restricted to the 

item of business contained in the request for the extraordinary meeting and there 
shall be no consideration of previous minutes or reports from Cabinet or Committees 
etc. except that the Chairman may at his absolute discretion permit other items of 
business to be conducted for the efficient discharge of the Council’s business. 

 
3. Substitute Members 

 
3.1 Appointment 
 
 Where a member is appointed to a Committee or any committee / sub-

committee of another council on which the District Council is represented, the 
member may appoint a substitute member to attend the meeting subject to the 
following qualification requirements: 

Page 30



 Appendix B 
 

(a)  In the case of the Audit, Licensing, Planning, Regulatory and Standards 
committees, all substitute members must have received training on the relevant 
committee’s area of work. 

(b)  Where the Member appointing a substitute is a Member of a Political Group the 
substitute Member shall only be from the membership of that same group 
unless there are no such trained members in that group. 

 
3.2 Extent of the Substitution  
 
3.2.1 Any such substitution shall have effect for the entirety of the meeting in respect 

of which the Notice has been given. 
 
3.2.2 No more than two Members of the same Political Group shall be substituted at 

any meeting and no Member shall be substituted at more than two consecutive 
meetings of the same Committee.  

 
3.2.3 Substitute Members may only attend meetings in that capacity where: 
 
(a) the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; 
(b) the ordinary Member has notified the Member Services Manager by email of 

the intended substitution at least one hour before the start of the relevant 
meeting; and  

(c) in the case of area committees the substitution does not alter the balance on 
that committee between Members from the area and Members from the rest of 
the District. 

 
4. Time, Place and Notice of Meetings 

 
4.1 The time and place of meetings will be determined by the Chief Executive and 

notified in the summons. 
 

4.2 The Chief Executive will give notice to the public of the time and place of any 
meeting in accordance with the Access to Information Procedure Rules.  

 
4.3 At least five clear working days before a meeting, the Chief Executive approved 

will send a summons approved by him/her to every Member of the Council. The 
summons will give the date, time and place of each meeting and specify the 
business to be transacted, and will be accompanied by such reports as are 
available. 

 
5. Chairman of the Meeting 

 
5.1 The person presiding at the meeting may exercise any power or duty of the 

Chairman.  
 

5.2 The Chairman of the Council, by virtue of office, is not eligible to hold office as a 
Chairman of any other committee during his/her term. 

 
5.3 The ruling of the Chairman as to the construction or application of any of these 

Procedure Rules, or as to any proceedings of the Council, shall not be 
challenged at any meeting. 

Page 31



 Appendix B 
 

 
5.4 When the Chairman stands during a debate, any member speaking at the time 
 must stop and sit down.  The meeting must be silent. 
 
6. Quorum 
 
6.1 The quorum of a full Council meeting will be one quarter of the whole number of 

Members (rounded up) present at the meeting where physical presence is 
required (or in attendance including remotely where such physical presence is 
not required).  

 
6.2 The quorum for a meeting of the Cabinet and any Committees will be one half 

of the number of members appointed to that body (rounded up) subject to a 
minimum of three in each case. 

 
6.3 During any meeting if the Chairman counts the number of Members present 

and declares there is not a quorum present the meeting will adjourn and 
remaining business will be considered at a time and date fixed by the Chairman 
or failing such, at the next ordinary meeting. 

 
7. Members’ Business 
 
7.1 At each ordinary meeting of the full Council, a period not exceeding 15 minutes 

shall be allowed during which any Member may make a statement or give 
preliminary verbal notice of a question provided that: 

 
(a) such statement or question must be relevant to some matter in relation to which 

the Council has powers or duties, or which affects the District and has not been 
otherwise before the Council for consideration at the same meeting; 

(b) no Member may make more than one statement or give notice of more than 
one question;  

(c)  no Member shall speak pursuant to this Procedure Rule for longer than two 
minutes; 

(c) the statement or notice of question shall not be the subject of discussion or 
reply at that meeting; 

(d) after the expiry of the said period of 15 minutes the Council shall proceed to the 
next business; and  

(e)  such statement or question is not (in the opinion of the Chairman) scurrilous, 
improper, capricious, irrelevant or otherwise objectionable. 
 

8. Questions from the Public 
 

8.1 Residents, electors or business rate payers of the District shall be entitled to 
ask questions at a meeting provided that: 

 
(a) the question(s) are relevant to an item on the Agenda for that meeting; 
(b) all the questions from one body shall not exceed three minutes when read out;  
(c) written notice has been given to the Member Services Manager by noon plus 

one clear working day before the meeting (via email or otherwise as he / she 
agrees) of the question(s) to be asked; and  

(d) the questions have not been rejected in accordance with Rule 8.5. 

Page 32



 Appendix B 
 

 
8.2 Time for Public Questions 
 
 Any public question shall be dealt with at the beginning of the Agenda and 

limited to 30 minutes provided that the Chairman may extend the time, or 
proceed to the next agenda time within the shortened period if there are no 
questions or all permitted questions are answered.   

 
8.3 Attendance  
 
 Persons submitting questions must be present (remotely or in person) at the 

meeting unless the Chairman agrees to address the questions in the 
questioner’s absence.  

 
8.4 Order of Questions 
 
 Questions will be asked in the order they have been received. 
  
8.5 Scope 
 
 The Chairman may, following advice from either the Chief Executive, Monitoring 

Officer or Member Services Manager, reject a question giving reasons for that 
rejection, if it: 

 
(a) Is not about a matter for which the Council has a responsibility or which affects 

the District; 
(b) Is in his/her opinion scurrilous, improper, capricious, irrelevant or otherwise 

objectionable; 
(c) Is substantially the same as a question which has been put at a meeting to 

which these rules apply in the past six months; or 
(d) Requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt information. 
 
8.6 Supplementary question 
 
 At the discretion of the Chairman questioners may ask one supplementary 

question. 
 
8.7 Answers to questions 
 
8.7.1 The Chairman or at meetings of the Council the appropriate Committee 

chairman, shall respond to all valid questions. 
 
8.7.2 Replies to questions may be verbal in writing or by reference to a published 

document.  
  
8.7.3 Replies which are not provided at the meeting shall be reported to the next 

relevant meeting by publishing them alongside the draft minutes when available 
and by circulating them to all Members. 

 
9. Petitions from the Public to full Council 
 

Page 33



 Appendix B 
 

9.1 Notice of Petition 

 

9.1.1 If a citizen wishes to present a petition to a Council meeting, notice must be 
given at least 10 working days before the meeting.  

 
9.1.2 Petitions to be debated at the Council Meeting will have been selected 

according to the Petitions Scheme (which is attached as Appendix D to the 
Constitution). 

 
9.2 Presentation of Petitions 
  
9.2.1 The petition organiser will be allowed 5 minutes to present the petition at the 

meeting. 
  
9.2.2 Only one person may speak to present a petition. 
 
9.2.3 The Council will debate a single petition for a maximum of 15 minutes (if the 

petition has 1500 signatures or more). 
 
9.2.4 The Council’s response to the petition may include one or more of the following: 
 
(a) taking the action requested in the petition; 
(b) not taking the action requested in the petition; 
(c) considering the petition at a council meeting; 
(d) holding an inquiry into the matter; 
(e) undertaking research into the matter; 
(f) holding a public meeting; 
(g) holding a consultation; 
(h) holding a meeting with the petitioners; 
(i) calling a referendum; 
(j) referring the petition for consideration by other committees such as the Scrutiny 

Committee; 
(k) where the issue is one on which the Cabinet is required to make the final 

decision, the Council will decide whether to make recommendations to inform 
that decision; 

(l) the petition organiser will receive a written acknowledgement of receipt of their 
petition, details as to when and where their petition will be considered and a 
letter giving the outcome which will also be published on the Council website. 

 
9.3 Scope of Petitions 
 
9.3.1 The Member Services Manager may reject a petition if it: 
 
(a) does not qualify under the scheme; 
(b) does not follow the Council’s guidelines for submitting a petition; 
(b) it is vexatious, abusive or otherwise inappropriate; 
(c) it is a petition qualifying under another enactment; 
(d) it relates to a planning, licensing or other regulatory decision; 

Page 34



 Appendix B 
 

(e) it relates to any other matter relating to an individual or entity in respect of 
which that individual or entity has a right of recourse to a review or right of 
appeal conferred by or under any enactment. 

 
10. Questions from Members at full Council 
 

10.1 Question without notice on reports of the Cabinet and Committees 
  

At an Ordinary meeting of the full Council a Member of the Council may ask 
the Leader, Cabinet Members or the Chairman of a Committee any question 
without notice upon an item of the report of the Cabinet or a Committee when 
that item is being received or under consideration by the Council. 
 

10.2 Questions on notice at full Council 
 

 A Member of the Council may, ask the Chairman of the Council, the Leader, a 
Cabinet Member or the Chairman of any Committee any question which:  

 
(a) concerns the Council’s powers / duties or which otherwise affects the District; 
(b) relates to matters on which the Council has or may determine a policy;  
(c) the Member has provided written notice of the question to the Chief Executive 

no later than noon, two clear days preceding the Council meeting; 
(d) the question has first been discussed at a meeting of the Cabinet or 

Committee and the Member is not satisfied with the adequacy of the answer 
contained in the relevant Minutes;  

and 
(e)  the question is not (in the opinion of the Chairman taking account of the advice 

on the matter from the Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer or Member Services 
Manager) one which: 
(i) is scurrilous, improper, capricious, irrelevant or otherwise objectionable 
(ii) is substantially the same as a question which has been put at a meeting 

of the Council (or other meeting to which these rules apply)  in the past 
six months; 

(iii) requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt information unless the 
question is raised in closed session; 

(iv) contains expressions of opinion; or  
(v) relates to questions of fact. 

 
10.3 Questions relating to urgent business 

 
A Member of the Council may, with the advance permission of the Chairman, 
put to him, the Leader, a Cabinet Member or the Chairman of any Committee 
any question relating to urgent business of which notice has not been given in 
accordance with paragraph 10.2(c) above, provided that: 
 

(a) the Chairman in his absolute discretion is satisfied that the matter being raised 
is of such urgency that compliance with paragraph 10.2(c) is precluded nor 
should its consideration be delayed until the next meeting of the Cabinet tor 
the Committee; and  

(b) a copy of any such question has been delivered to the Chief Executive no later 
than 9am the day before the Council meeting. 

Page 35



 Appendix B 
 

 
10.4 Order of Questions 

 
10.4.1 Questions under 10.2 and 10.3 shall be taken at the appropriate point in the 

relevant Committee report or in the absence of such, at the Members’ 
Questions agenda item. 

 
10.4.2 Questions and written answers shall be printed in order of receipt and 

circulated amongst the Members at the commencement of the Council 
meeting.  

 
10.4.3 No discussion shall be allowed upon questions or answers save as is 

permitted under Rules 10.5 to 10.8 below. 
 
10.5 Form of Response 

 
10.5.1 The Chief Executive shall arrange for copies of questions and answers to be 

sent to Members not present at the Meeting of the Council. 
 

10.5.2 An answer may take the form of: 
(a) a direct oral answer at the meeting; 
(b) where the desired information is in a publication of the Council or other 

published work, a reference to that publication; or 
(c) where the reply cannot conveniently be given orally, a written answer 

circulated within 10 working days to the questioner and all Members. 
 

10.6 Supplementary question 
 

One relevant supplementary question to an answer to a question on notice 
shall be allowed to the original questioner but may be disallowed or not 
answered if the Chairman of the Council considers it in breach of paragraph 
10.2(e). 
 

10.7 Length of Speeches 
 

A Member asking a question under Rules 10.1 to 10.3 and a Member 
answering such a question may speak for no longer than three minutes unless 
the Chairman consents to a longer period. 
 

10.8 Time Allowed for Questions  
 
10.8.1 The time allowed for consideration of all questions at full Council which are 

submitted under Rule 10 shall not, without the consent of the Council, exceed 
30 minutes. 

 
10.8.2 At the conclusion of the answer to the question under consideration at the 

expiry of 30 minutes (or such longer period to which the Council has 
consented) from the time when the first questioner started to speak, the 
Chairman shall continue with the meeting unless the Council resolves 
otherwise at the meeting. 

 

Page 36



 Appendix B 
 

10.8.3 Any remaining questions shall be responded to in writing before the next 
ordinary meeting of the Council with written answers to be forwarded to all 
Members.  

 
11. Motions 

 
11.1 Motions on Notice  
 
11.1.1 Notice: Except for motions which can be moved without notice under Rule 

11.7, written notice of every motion, must be delivered to the Chief Executive 
via Member Services at least eight clear working days before the Council 
meeting at which it is to be considered.  

 
11.1.2 Record of Motions: Motions received will be entered in a record, in the order 

they are received, which is open to public inspection. Where a motion is 
rejected, the record need only comprise a summary giving reason(s) why it 
was rejected. 
 

11.1.3 Motion set out in Summons:  The Chief Executive shall set out in the 
Summons for every meeting of the Council all Motions of which notice has 
been duly given in the order in which they have been received, unless: 

 
(a) The motion is rejected in accordance with Rule 11.5; or  
(b) The Member giving such a notice intimated in writing, when giving it, that 

he/she proposed to move it at some later meeting or has since withdrawn it in 
writing. 
 

11.1.4 Motion not moved: Subject to 11.1.7 if a Motion set out in the Summons is 
not moved either by a Member who gave notice or by some other Member on 
his behalf it shall, unless postponed by resolution of the Council, be treated as 
withdrawn and shall not be moved without fresh notice. 

 
11.1.5 Speaking on the Motion: Those moving and seconding the Motion at the 

Council meeting shall be invited to speak on the Motion.  In the event that the 
Motion stands referred to another body as provided for in 11.1.6 the mover (or 
in his absence, the seconder) of the Motion shall be invited to the relevant 
meeting to amplify the Motion, but without any right to vote except as a 
member of the Cabinet or relevant Committee.  

 
11.1.6 Reference to Committee: If the subject matter of any Motion, of which notice 

has been duly given comes within the province of the Cabinet or a Committee, 
it shall, after being formally moved and seconded (with those moving and 
seconding the motion having been given the opportunity to speak on the 
Motion), either: 

 
(a) stand referred to the Cabinet or the most relevant Committee as the Chairman 

may determine for consideration and report; or 
(b) on an alternative motion being put forward and accepted, be dealt within in 

accordance with that alternative motion.  
 

Page 37



 Appendix B 
 

11.1.7 Consideration by full Council: The Chairman of Council may if he considers 
it convenient and conducive to the despatch of business allow the Motion to 
be dealt with at the meeting, at which it is brought forward. 

 
11.1.8 Scope of Motions on Notice: Motions must:  
 
(a) be about matters for which the Council has a responsibility or which affect the 

District; and 
(b) not, in the opinion of the Chief Executive be out of order, illegal, irregular or 

improper. 
 
11.1.9 If a motion is not within scope, the Chief Executive shall as soon as is 

practicable, submit the notice of motion to the Chairman of the Council and the 
motion shall not be accepted nor placed on the agenda without the 
Chairman’s sanction.   

 
11.1.10 In the event of non-acceptance, the Chief Executive shall inform the member 

giving notice as soon as reasonably possible of the reason(s) for the rejection. 
 
11.2    Motion on Notice to Remove the Leader 

 
In order for such a motion to be carried it must have the support of the majority 
of those members voting and present in the room at the time the question was 
put. 

 
11.3      Motions without Notice 

 
11.3.1 The following motions may be moved without notice: 

 

(a) to appoint a Chairman of the meeting at which the motion is moved; 
(b) in relation to the accuracy of the minutes; 
(c) to change the order of business in the agenda; 
(d) to adopt a recommendation on some other course of action arising from a 

report to the meeting or as a result of a petition submitted to the meeting or 
recommendation arising from  single issue debate 

(e) to refer something to an appropriate body or individual; 
(f) to appoint a committee or member arising from an item on the summons for 

the meeting; 
(g) to receive reports or adoption of recommendations of Committees or officers 

and any resolutions following from them; 
(h) to withdraw a motion which may be moved in accordance with this procedure 

rule; 
(i) to amend a motion which may be moved in accordance with this procedure 

rule, subject to the provisions of the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure 
Rules in relation to amendment of the Cabinet's proposals for the Council’s 
Budget and Policy Framework; 

(j) to proceed to the next business (such Motion may only be moved by a 
Councillor who has not spoken in the debate) 

(k) that the question be now put (such Motion may only be moved by a Councillor 
who has not spoken in the debate) 

Page 38



 Appendix B 
 

(l) to adjourn a debate; 
(m) to adjourn a meeting; 
(n) to suspend a particular Council Procedure Rule; 
(o) to exclude the public and press in accordance with the Access to Information 

Procedure Rules; 
(p) not to hear further a Member named under Rule 18.2 or excluded from 

the meeting under Rule 18.3; and 
(q) to give the consent of the Council where its consent is required by this 

Constitution. 
 

12. Rules of Debate 
 
12.1 No speeches may be made unless the appropriate Notice has been given and 

until the Motion is seconded; or the appropriate Notice has been given and is 
moved by the Chairman of the meeting. 

 
12.2 When seconding a motion or amendment, a member may reserve their 

speech until later in the debate. 
 
12.3 Content and length of speeches 

 
12.3.1 Speeches must be directed to the question under discussion or to a personal 

explanation or point of order.  
  
12.3.2 No speech shall exceed: 
 
(a) Five minutes in the case of the mover of a Motion; 
(b) Three minutes in the case of the seconder; 
(c) Five minutes in the case of the Leader, the relevant Cabinet Member or the 

Chairman of a Committee dealing with the matters arising from committee 
reports except with the consent of the Chairman who shall have discretion to 
extend that time if it appears prudent in his judgement to do so; 

(d) Three minutes in all other cases except by consent of the Council; and 
(e) When the Council’s annual budget is under discussion, the leader of each 

political group on the Council may speak for up to five minutes or such longer 
period as the Chairman shall allow. 

 
12.4 When a Member may speak again 
 
 A member who has spoken on a motion may not speak again whilst it is the 

subject of debate, except: 
 
(a) to speak once on an amendment moved by another member; 
(b) to move a further amendment if the motion has been amended since he/she 

last spoke; 
(c) if his/her first speech was on an amendment moved by another member, to 

speak on the main issue (whether or not the amendment on which he/she 
spoke was carried); 

(d) in exercise of a right of reply; 
(e) on a point of order; and 
(f) by way of personal explanation. 

Page 39



 Appendix B 
 

 
12.5 Amendments to motions 
 
 An amendment to a motion must be relevant to the motion and will either be: 
(a) to refer the matter to an appropriate body or individual for consideration or 

reconsideration; 
(i) to leave out words; 
(ii) to leave out words and insert or add others; or 
(iii) to insert or add words 
(iv) as long as the effect of (i) to (iii) is not to negate the motion. 

(b) Only one amendment may be moved and discussed at any one time.  No 
further amendment may be moved until the amendment under discussion has 
been disposed of provided that the Chairman may permit two or more 
amendments to be discussed (but not voted on) together if circumstances 
suggest that this course of action would facilitate the proper conduct of the 
Council’s business. 

(c) If an amendment is not carried, other amendments to the original motion may 
be moved. 

(d) If an amendment is carried, the motion as amended takes the place of the 
original motion. This becomes the substantive motion to which any further 
amendments are moved. 

(e) After an amendment has been carried, the Chairman will read out the 
amended motion before accepting any further amendments, or if there are 
none, put it to the vote. 

 
12.6 Alteration of motion 

 
12.6.1 A Member may alter a motion of which he/she has given notice with the 

consent of the meeting. The meeting’s consent will be signified without 
discussion. 

 
12.6.2 A Member may alter a motion which he/she has moved without notice with the 

consent of both the meeting and the seconder. The meeting’s consent will be 
signified without discussion. 

 
12.6.3 Only alterations which could be made as an amendment may be made. 
 
12.7 Withdrawal of motion 
 
12.7.1 A Member may withdraw a motion which he/she has moved with the consent 

of both the meeting and the seconder.  
 
12.7.2 The meeting’s consent will be signified without discussion.  
 
12.7.3 No member may speak on the motion after the mover has asked permission to 

withdraw it unless permission is refused. 
 
12.8 Right of reply 

 
12.8.1 The mover of a motion has a right to reply at the end of the debate on the 

motion, immediately before it is put to the vote. 

Page 40



 Appendix B 
 

 
12.8.2 If an amendment is moved, the mover of the original motion has the right of 

reply at the close of the debate on the amendment, but may not otherwise 
speak on it. 

 
12.8.3 The mover of the amendment has no right of reply to the debate on his/her 

amendment. 
 
12.9 Motions which may be moved during debate 
 
 When a motion is under debate, no other motion may be moved except the 

following procedural motions: 
 
(a) to withdraw a motion; 
(b) to amend a motion; 
(c) to proceed to the next business; 
(d) that the question be now put; 
(e) to adjourn a debate; 
(f) to adjourn a meeting; 
(g) to exclude the public and press in accordance with the Access to Information 

Procedure Rules; and 
(h) Not to hear further a Member named under Rule 18.2 or excluded from the 

meeting under Rule 18.3. 
 

12.10 Closure motions 
 

12.10.1 A Member may move, without comment, the following motions at the end of a 
speech of another Member: 

(a) to proceed to the next business; 
(b) that the question be now put; 
(c) to adjourn a debate; or 
(d) to adjourn a meeting. 
 
12.10.2 If a motion to proceed to next business is seconded and the Chairman 

considers the item has been sufficiently discussed, he/she will give the mover 
of the original motion (if there is one) a right of reply and then put the 
procedural motion to the vote. 

 
12.10.3 If a motion that the question be now put is seconded and the Chairman 

considers the item has been sufficiently discussed, he/she will put the 
procedural motion to the vote. If it is passed he/she will give the mover of the 
original motion (if there is one) a right of reply before putting his/her motion to 
the vote. 

 
12.10.4 If a motion to adjourn the debate or to adjourn the meeting is seconded and 

the Chairman considers the item has not been sufficiently discussed and 
cannot reasonably be so discussed on that occasion, he/she will put the 
procedural motion to the vote without giving the mover of the original motion 
the right of reply. 

 
12.11 Point of Order 

Page 41



 Appendix B 
 
 

 A point of order is a request from a member to the Chairman to rule on an 
alleged irregularity in the procedure of the meeting.  A member may raise a 
point of order at any time. The Chairman will hear them immediately. A point 
of order may only relate to an alleged breach of procedure set out in these 
Council Rules of Procedure or the law. The member must indicate the rule or 
law and the way in which he/she considers it has been broken. The ruling of 
the Chairman on the matter will be final. 

 
12.12 Personal explanation 

 
 A member may make a personal explanation at any time. A personal 

explanation may only relate to some material part of an earlier speech by the 
member which may appear to have been misunderstood in the present 
debate. The ruling of the Chairman on the admissibility of a personal 
explanation will be final. 

 
13 State of the District Debate 

 
13.1 Calling of the debate 

 
 The Leader may call a state of the District debate annually on a date to be 

agreed with the Chairman. 
 
13.2 Form of the debate 

 
 The Leader will decide the form of the debate with the aim of enabling the 

widest possible public involvement and publicity. This may include holding 
workshops and other events prior to or during the state of the District debate. 

 
13.3 Chairing of the debate 

 
 The debate will be chaired by the Chairman. 
 
13.4 Results of the debate 

 
13.4.1 The results of the debate will be: 
 
(a) disseminated as widely as possible within the community and to agencies and 

organisations in the area; and 
(b) considered by the Leader in proposing the Budget and Policy Framework to 

the Council for the coming year. 
 
13.4.2 If the Leader fails to call a debate within nine months in any municipal year, it 

may be called by notice in writing to the Chief Executive signed by any 10 
Members of the Council and that the debate shall be heard on the subject and 
form specified by those 10 Members. 

 
14. Previous Decisions and Motions 
 
14.1 Motion to rescind a previous decision 

Page 42



 Appendix B 
 
 

 A motion or amendment to rescind a decision made at a meeting of Council 
within the past six months cannot be moved unless the notice of motion is 
signed by at least 10 Members. 

 
14.2 Motion similar to one previously rejected 

 
14.2.1 This Procedure Rule 14.2 shall not apply to Motions moved in pursuance of a 

recommendation of a Committee. 
 
14.2.2 A motion or amendment in similar terms to one that has been rejected at a 

meeting of Council in the past six months cannot be moved unless the notice 
of motion or amendment is signed by at least ten members.  

 
14.2.3 Once the motion or amendment is dealt with, no one can propose a similar 

motion or amendment for six months. 
 

15. Voting 
 
15.1 Majority 

 
Unless this Constitution provides otherwise, any matter will be decided by a 
simple majority of those members voting and present in the room at the time 
the question is put. 

 
15.2 Chairman’s casting vote 

 
If there are equal numbers of votes for and against, the Chairman will have a 
second or casting vote. There will be no restriction on how the Chairman 
chooses to exercise a casting vote. 

 
15.3 Method of Voting 

 
Unless a recorded vote is demanded under Rule 15.4 the Chairman will take 
the vote by show of hands, or if there is no dissent, by the affirmation of the 
meeting. 

 
15.4 Recorded vote 

 
If 10 Members present at the meeting demand it, the names for and against 
the motion or amendment or abstaining from voting will be taken down in 
writing and entered into the minutes. 

 
15.5 Right to require individual vote to be recorded 

 
Where any Member requests it immediately after the vote is taken, their vote 
will be recorded in the minutes to show whether they voted for or against the 
motion or abstained from voting. 

 
15.6 Voting on appointments 

 

Page 43



 Appendix B 
 

15.6.1 If there are more than two people nominated for any position to be filled and 
there is not a clear majority of votes in favour of one person, then the name of 
the person with the least number of votes will be taken off the list and a new 
vote taken.  

 
15.6.2 The process will continue until there is a majority of votes for one person. 

 
15.7 Voting on the Budget and Council Tax 

 
At a Budget meeting, the vote on any motion or amendment relating to the 
setting of the Budget (revenue and capital budget) and Council Tax or precept 
shall be by roll call and the names of Members who voted as for, against or in 
abstention to any such motion or amendment shall be recorded in the minutes 
of that meeting. 
 

16. Minutes 
 
16.1 Signing the minutes 

 
16.1.1 The Chairman will sign the minutes of the proceedings at the next suitable 

meeting.  
16.1.2 The Chairman will move that the minutes of the previous meeting be signed as 

a correct record.  
16.1.3 The only part of the minutes that can be discussed is their accuracy. 
 
16.2 No requirement to sign minutes of previous meeting at an Extra-ordinary 

meeting 
 
 Where in relation to any meeting, the next meeting for the purpose of signing 

the minutes is a meeting called under paragraph 3 of Schedule 12 to the Local 
Government Act 1972 (an extraordinary meeting), then the next following 
meeting (being a meeting called otherwise than under that paragraph) will be 
treated as a suitable meeting for the purposes of paragraph 41(1) and (2) of 
Schedule 12 relating to signing of minutes. 

 
16.3 Form of minutes 

 
Minutes will contain all motions and amendments in the exact form and order 
the Chairman put them. 
 

17. Exclusion of Public 
 
Members of the public and press may only be excluded either in accordance 
with the Access to Information Procedure Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution or 
Rule 19 (Disturbance by Public) or otherwise permissible in law. 
 

18. Members’ Conduct 
 
18.1 Speaking at meetings 

 

Page 44



 Appendix B 
 

18.1.1 When a Member speaks at full Council he/she must address the meeting 
through the Chairman.  

18.1.2 If more than one Member signifies their intention to speak, the Chairman will 
ask one to speak.  

18.1.3 Other Members must remain silent whilst a Member is speaking unless they 
wish to make a point of order or a point of personal explanation. 

 
18.2 Member not to be heard further 

 
18.2.1 If a Member persistently disregards the ruling of the Chairman by behaving 

improperly or offensively or deliberately obstructs business, the Chairman may 
move that the member not be heard further.  

18.2.2 If seconded, the motion will be voted on without discussion. 
 
18.3 Member to leave the meeting 

 
18.3.1 If the Member continues to behave improperly after such a motion is carried, 

the Chairman may move that either the Member leaves the meeting or that the 
meeting is adjourned for a specified period.  

18.3.2 If seconded, the motion will be voted on without discussion. 
 
18.4 General disturbance 

 
If there is a general disturbance making orderly business impossible, the 
Chairman may adjourn the meeting for as long as he/she thinks necessary. 
 

19. Disturbance by the Public 
 
19.1 Removal of member of the public 

 
19.1.1 If a member of the public interrupts proceedings, the Chairman will warn the 

person concerned.  
19.1.2 If they continue to interrupt, the Chairman will order their removal from the 

meeting room. 
 
19.2 Clearance of part of meeting room 

  
If there is a general disturbance in any part of the meeting room open to the 
public, the Chairman may call for that part to be cleared. 
 

20. Suspension and Amendment of Council Procedure Rules 
 
20.1 Suspension 

 
All of these Council Rules of Procedure except Rules 5.3, 15.5, 16.3 may be 
suspended by motion on notice or without notice if at least one half of the 
whole number of members of the Council are present. Suspension can only be 
for the duration of the meeting.  

 
20.2 Amendment 

 

Page 45



 Appendix B 
 
Any motion to add to, vary or revoke these Council Rules of Procedure will, 
when proposed and seconded, stand adjourned without discussion to the next 
ordinary meeting of the Council unless the amendment is the subject of a 
report from the Standards Committee.  
 

Page 46



Appendix C – Tracked Changes shown 

SECTION 1 - Council Procedure Rules 

Introduction:  

There are currently 20 procedure rules. They apply to all meetings of full Council (i.e. 
when all Members of the Council attend as voting members). Subject to the 
exceptions set out below in Rule 1 or where the rules provides or the context 
otherwise makes clear, they also apply to Cabinet and Committees (which latter 

term for the purposes of these rules, includes their sub-committees and Policy 
Development Groups).  

1. Exceptions of Rules to Committees Meetings  

2. Full Council  

3. Substitute Members  

4. Time Place and Notice of Meetings  

5. Chairman of the Meeting  

6. Quorum  

7. Members’ Business at full Council  

8. Questions by the Public  

9. Petitions from the Public  

10. Questions from Members at full Council  

11. Motions  

12. Rules of Debate  

13. State of District Debate  

14. Previous Decisions and Motions  

15. Voting  

16. Minutes  

17. Exclusion of the Public  

18. Members’ Conduct  

19. Disturbance by the Public  

20. Suspension and Amendment of Council Procedure Rules 

 

Page 47



Appendix C – Tracked Changes shown 

11. Exceptions of Rules to Committee Meetings 

Committee Rules which don’t apply 

Audit Members’ Business (Rule 7)  

No motions other than those referred by full Council (Rule 11)  

No restriction on the number of times a member can speak during 
debate (Rule 12) 

Cabinet No appointment of Substitutes (Rule 3) 

Members’ Business (Rule 7) 

No motions other than those referred by full Council (Rule 11) 

No restriction on the number of times a member can speak during  

debate (Rule 12) 

Electoral Review Members’ Business (Rule 7) 

No motions other than those referred by full Council (Rule 11) 

No restriction on the number of times a member can speak during  

debate (Rule 12) 

Policy  

Development Groups 
(PDG’s) 

Members’ Business (Rule 7) 

No motions other than those referred by full Council (Rule 11) 

No restriction on the number of times a member can speak during  

debate (Rule 12) 

Licensing No appointment of Substitutes for sub-committees (Rule 3) 

Members’ Business (Rule 7) 

Public Questions for sub-committees (Rule 8) 

No motions other than those referred by full Council (Rule 11) 

No restriction on the number of times a member can speak during  

debate (Rule 12) 

Planning Members’ Business (Rule 7) 

No motions other than those referred by full Council (Rule 11) 

No restriction on the number of times a member can speak during  

debate (Rule 12) 

Regulatory No appointment of Substitutes for sub-committees (Rule 3) 

Members’ Business (Rule 7) 

Public Questions for sub-committees (Rule 8) 

No motions other than those referred by full Council (Rule 11) 

No restriction on the number of times a member can speak during  

debate (Rule 12) 

Page 48



Appendix C – Tracked Changes shown 

Scrutiny Members’ Business (Rule 7) 

No motions other than those referred by full Council (Rule 11) 

No restriction on the number of times a member can speak during  

debate (Rule 12) 

Standards No appointment of Substitutes for sub-committees (Rule 3) 

Members’ Business (Rule 7) 

Public Questions for sub-committees (Rule 8) 

No motions other than those referred by full Council (Rule 11) 

No restriction on the number of times a member can speak during  

debate (Rule 12) 

 

 

2. Annual Meeting of the Full Council 

 

2.1 Annual Meeting 

 
2.1.1 Timing and business:  

In a year when there is an ordinary election of councillors, the annual meeting will 
take place within 21 days of the retirement (four days after the election) of the 
outgoing councillors. In any other year, the annual meeting will take place in 
March, April or May. 

 
2.1.2   Business: The annual meeting will: 

(a) elect a person to preside if the outgoing Chairman of Council or Vice 
Chairman of the Council is not present; 

(b) elect the Chairman of the Council (subject to the statutory provisions in 
that behalf, a Councillor who is the present Chairman of the Council and 
has completed two consecutive years in such office shall not be eligible 
for re-election as Chairman of the Council for the ensuing year); 

(c) elect the Vice Chairman of the Council; 

(d) approve the minutes of the last meeting of the Council; 

(e) receive any announcements from the Chairman and/or the Head of Paid 
ServiceChief Executive; 

(f) elect the Leader (following the ordinary election of councillors); 

(g) elect the Scrutiny Committee Chairman; 

(h) agree the scheme of delegations as set out in Part 3 of this Constitution 
approve a programme of ordinary meetings of the Council for the year; 
and 

(i) consider any other business set out in the notice convening the meeting. 

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Page 49



Appendix C – Tracked Changes shown 

1.22.1.3 Appointment of Committees: and Selection 

of Councillors on Outside Bodies 

At the aAnnual mMeeting, the Council meeting will: 

(a) decide which committees to establish for the municipal year; 

(b) decide the size and terms of reference for those cCommittees; 

(c) decide the allocation of seats to political groups in accordance with the 
political balance rules; 

(d) receive nominations of (any) ungrouped Councillors to serve on each 
cCommittee and vote on each appointment 

(e) make appointments to outside bodies except where appointment to those 
bodies has been delegated by the Council or is exercisable only by the 
Cabinet (in respect of eExecutive functions); 

2.2 Ordinary Meetings 

2.2.1 Business: Ordinary meetings of the Council will take place in accordance 

with a programme decided at the Council’s annual meeting. The order of 
business at ordinary meetings will be as follows: 

(a) elect a person to preside if the Chairman and Vice Chairman are not 
present; 

(b) approve the minutes of the last meeting (whether the annual meeting or 
otherwise); 

(c) receive any declarations of interest from Members; 

(d) receive any announcements from the Chairman; 

(e) receive questions from, and provide answers to, the public in relation to 
matters which in the opinion of the Chairman are relevant to the 
Council’s functions or business of the meetingPublic Questions (as set 
out in Rule 8); 

(f) receive a report from the Leader and receive questions and answers on 
the report; 

(g) deal with any business remaining from the last Council meeting; 

(h) receive petitions from members of the public; 

(i) debate single issues; 

(j) consider Motions; 

(k) consider reports recommendations from the Cabinet ; 

(l) consider any reports recommendations submitted by the Scrutiny 
Committee and the other Council’s cCommittees; 

(m) receive reports about and receive questions and answers on the 
business of joint arrangements and external organisations; 

(n) receive statement made and notices of future questions given by 
Members’ Business (as set out in Rule 7); 

(o) consider any urgent items of business brought forward at the discretion 
of the Chairman and .  In respect of any such urgent items of business, 
the Chairman must be satisfied that the item of business is urgent 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Page 50



Appendix C – Tracked Changes shown 

enough to justify its inclusion on the agenda.  Tthe reason for urgency 
must be announced at the meeting and recorded in the minutes.  The 
discretion as to urgency is entirely with the Chairman; and 

(p) consider any other business specified in the summons to the meeting. 
and reports of the Scrutiny Committee for debate; 

2.2.2 Variation of Order of Business:  

 Business falling under items 2.2.1 and 2.2 shall not be displaced, but subject 
thereto the foregoing order of business may be varied: 

(a) by the Chairman at his/her discretion; or 

(b) by a resolution passed on a Motion (which need not be in writing) duly 
moved and seconded, which shall be moved and put without 
discussion. 

2.3. Extraordinary Meetings 

2.3.1 Calling extraordinary meetings 

Those listed below may request the pProper oOfficer to call Council meetings in 
addition to oOrdinary mMeetings: 

(a) the Council by resolution; 

(b) the Chairman of the Council; 

(c) the Monitoring Officer; or 

(d) any five Members of the Council if they have signed a requisition 
presented to the Chairman of the Council and he has refused to call a 
meeting or has failed to call a meeting within seven days of the 
presentation of the requisition. 

2.3.2 Business 

The business to be conducted at an extraordinary meeting shall be restricted to the 
item of business contained in the request for the extraordinary meeting and 
there shall be no consideration of previous minutes or reports from Cabinet or 
cCommittees etc. except that the Chairman may at his absolute discretion 
permit other items of business to be conducted for the efficient discharge of 
the Council’s business. 

 

34. Appointment of sSubstitute mMembers 

43.1 Appointment  

Where a member is appointed to a Committee or any committee/sub-
committee of another council on which the District Council is represented, 
the member may appoint a substitute member to attend the meeting subject 
to the following qualification requirements: 

 

a) In the case of the Audit, Licensing, Planning, Regulatory and Standards 
committees, all substitute members must have received training on the 
relevant committee’s area of work. 

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold

Page 51



Appendix C – Tracked Changes shown 

b) Where the Member appointing a substitute is a Member of a Political Group 
the substitute Member shall only be from the membership of that same group 
unless there are no such trained members in that group. 

Cabinet 

This rule does not apply to the Cabinet as they are not able to use 
substitutes 

4.2 Scrutiny Committee and Policy Development Groups (PDGs) 

Where a member is appointed to the Scrutiny Committee, Policy 
Development Groups or to serve on any committee or sub-committee of 
another council on which this council is represented, provided that council’s 
constitution so permits, that member may appoint a substitute member to 
attend the meeting 

4.3        Planning, Licencing, Licensing Regulatory, Audit and Standards Committee 

In respect of the Licensing, Licensing Regulatory, Audit and Standards 
Committees, each Committee will have a pool of five suitably trained 
members shall be established and substitutes may only be nominated from 
that pool.  Planning Committee has a pool of 7). 

4.4 Licencing, Licensing Regulatory and standards sub committees 

Substitutes cannot be used in the case of a Licencing, Regulatory or 
Standards sub committee. 

4.5 

            Where the Member appointing a substitute is a Member of a Political Group 
the  substitute Member shall be from the membership of that same Group. 

3.2        Extent of the Substitution  

3.2.1Any such substitution shall have effect for the entirety of the meeting in 
respect of which the Notice has been given. 

A substitute Member shall be entitled to vote and shall assume all the 
responsibilities and rights of a Member of the Scrutiny Committee, Audit 
Committee, Policy Development Group, Committee, Sub-Committee or other 
body. 

Notice in writing of a substitute shall be given to the Chief Executive (and 
recorded by him in the order in which they are received) by the Member 
appointing the substitute before the commencement of the meeting.  
Notification by a Member purporting to be a substitute Member will not be 
accepted. 

3.2.2. No more than two Members of the same Political Group shall be 
substituted at any meeting, and no Member shall be substituted at more than 
two consecutive meetings of the same Scrutiny Committee., Audit 
Committee, Policy Development Group, Committee, Sub-Committee etc. 

The Monitoring Officer may consider a request from a Member of a Council 
Body to appoint a substitute Member (for one meeting only), providing that 
substitute Member is from the same political group. 

In order to be eligible to sit as substitutes on regulatory or quasi-judicial 
committees or panels or staff appointments or disciplinary bodies 

Page 52



Appendix C – Tracked Changes shown 

established by the Council, Members must have received formal training in 
relevant procedures and the law 

Substitute Members will have all the powers and duties of any ordinary 
Member of the committee but will not be able to exercise any special powers 
or duties exercisable by the person they are substituting. 

3.2.3 Substitute Members may only attend meetings in that capacity 
onlywhere: 

(a) to take the place of the ordinary Member for whom they are designated 
substitute; 

(b)(a) where the ordinary Member will be absent for 
the whole of the meeting; 

(c)(b) where the ordinary Member has notified the 
Member Services Officer Manager by email of the intended substitution 
at least one hour before the start of the relevant meeting; and  

(d)(c) provided, in the case of area committees, that 
the substitution does not alter the balance on that committee between 
Members from the area and Members from the rest of the District. 

54. Time, Place and Duration Notice of Meetings 

54.1 The time and place of meetings will be determined by the Chief Executive 
and notified in the summons. 

6. Notice of and Summons to Meetings 

6.14.2 The Chief Executive will give notice to the public of the time and place of any 
meeting in accordance with the Access to Information Procedure Rules.  

4.3 At least five clear working days before a meeting, the Chief Executive 
approved will send a summons signed approved by him/her to every 
Member of the Council. The summons will give the date, time and place of 
each meeting and specify the business to be transacted, and will be 
accompanied by such reports as are available. 

75. Chairman of the Meeting 

75.1 The person presiding at the meeting may exercise any power or duty of the 
Chairman. Where these rules apply to committee and sub-committee 
meetings, references to the Chairman also include the Chairmen of 
committees and sub­committees. 

75.2 The Chairman of the Council, by virtue of office, is not eligible to hold office 
as a Chairman of any other Committee during his/her term. 

5.3  The ruling of the Chairman as to the construction or application of any of 
these Procedure Rules, or as to any proceedings of the Council, shall not be 
challenged at any meeting. 

5.4 When the Chairman stands during a debate, any member speaking at the 
time must stop and sit down. The meeting must be silent.  

86. Quorum 

86.1 The quorum of a Full Council meeting will be one quarter of the whole 
number of Members (11 membersrounded up) present at the meeting where 
physical presence is required (or in attendance including remotely where 

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Page 53



Appendix C – Tracked Changes shown 

such physical presence is not required). During any meeting if the Chairman 
counts the number of Members present and declares there is not a quorum 
present, then the meeting will adjourn immediately. Remaining business will 
be considered at a time and date fixed by the Chairman. If he/she does not 
fix a date, the remaining business will be considered at the next ordinary 
meeting. 

86.2 The quorum for a meeting of the Cabinet and any , Scrutiny Committees will 
be one half of the number of members appointed to that body (rounded up) 
subject to a minimum of three in each case. , Audit Committee, Standards 
Committee, Policy Development Groups, Planning Committee, Licensing 
Committee, Licensing Regulatory Committee, a Committee or a sub-
committee of the Council will be one half of the number of members 
appointed (rounded up) to the Cabinet (four), Scrutiny Committee (six), Audit 
Committee (four), Standards Committee (five), Policy Development Groups 
(five), Planning Committee (six), Licensing Committee (six), Licensing 
Regulatory Committee (six), a Committee or a sub-committee. See the 
procedure Rules for information about quorum per committee  

6.3 During any meeting if the Chairman counts the number of Members present 
and declares there is not a quorum present the meeting will adjourn and 
remaining business will be considered at a time and date fixed by the 
Chairman or failing such, at the next ordinary meeting. 

9. Single Issue Debate 

9.1 Where any five members give notice in writing, delivered at least eight clear 
days before the next meeting of the Council at the office of the Chief 
Executive, of request for a single issue debate. Rule 16 (Rules of Debate) 
shall not apply to any debate under this Procedure Rule. 

9.2 A period of not exceeding one hour shall be allowed during which debate 
may take place.  Any recommendations arising from such debate shall be 
referred to the appropriate committee for consideration. 

107. Members’ Business 

107.1 At each ordinary meeting of the full Council, a period not exceeding 15 
minutes shall be allowed during which any Member may make a statement 
or give preliminary verbal notice of a question provided that:- 

(a) such statement or question must be relevant to some matter in relation 
to which the Council has powers or duties, or which affects the District 
and has not been otherwise before the Council for consideration at the 
same meeting; 

(b) no Member may make more than one statement or give notice of more 
than one question;,  

(c ) and no Member shall speak pursuant to this Procedure Rule for longer 
than two minutes; 

(dc) the statement or notice of question shall not be the subject of 
discussion or reply at that meeting; 

(e) (d)after the expiry of the said period of 15 minutes the Council shall 

proceed to the next business; and 

Formatted: Underline

Page 54



Appendix C – Tracked Changes shown 

(f) . such statement or questions is not (in the opinion of the Chairman) 

scurrilous, improper, capricious, irrelevant or otherwise objectionable. 

118. Questions by from the Public 

118.1 Residents, electors or business rate payers of the District shall be entitled to 
ask questions at a meeting provided that:  

 General 

(a) (a)the question(s) are relevant to an item on the Agenda for that 
meeting;Public Question Time shall apply at all public meetings of the 
Council with the exception of the Licencing Sub Committee, Licensing 
Regulatory Sub-committee and Standards Sub Committee. 

(b) all the questions from one body shall not exceed three minutes when 
read out; 

(c) written notice has been given to the Member Services Manager by 
noon plus one clear working day before the meeting (via email or 
otherwise as he/she agrees) of the question(s) to be asked; and  

(d) the questions have not been rejected in accordance with Rule 8.5.  

8.2       Time for Public Questions 

(b) Any Ppublic Qquestion Time shall normally be dealt with at the 
beginning of the Agenda (i.e. as part of the formal meeting) unless a 
Committee/Group shall determine otherwise;and  

(c) The total time allocated for questions by the public is limited to 30 
minutes provided that the Chairman may extend the time, or proceed to the 
next agenda time within the shortened period if there are no questions or all 
permitted questions are answered. In the event that there are no questions, 
or no further questions, the Chairman shall have the discretion to proceed 
with the Agenda prior to the expiry of that period.  The Chairman also has 
discretion to extend the time for public questions if he/she deems it to be 
appropriate 

(d) Residents, electors or business rate payers of the District shall be 
entitled to ask questions 

 

11.28.3 Asking a question at the meetingAttendance 

Ideally pPersons submitting questions should must be present (remotely or 
in person) at the meeting unless the Chairman agrees to address the 
questions in the questioner’s absence.  It is preferable that notice is given of 
the question to be asked at the meeting 

However, if a questioner who has submitted a question is unable to be 
present, they may ask the Chairman to put the question on their behalf.   

 

8.4 Order of Questions 

(a) Questions will be asked in the order they have been received  

 

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Page 55



Appendix C – Tracked Changes shown 

8.5 Scope 

 (b) Written questions will be dealt with first 

(c) Questions may be verbal or, preferably written 

(d) A question shall not exceed 3 minutes 

(e) Questions must be relevant to an item on the Agenda for that meeting 

(f) The Chairman may, following advice from either the Chief Executive, 
Monitoring Officer or Member Services Manager, shall have the 
discretion to reject a question, giving reasons for that rejection, if it: 

(a)Is not about a matter for which the Council has a responsibility or which affects 
the District; 

(b) Is in his/her opinion scurrilous, improper, capricious, irrelevant or otherwise 
objectionable; 

(c) Is substantially the same as a question which has been put at a meeting to which 
these rules apply of the Council in the past six months; or  

(d) rRequires the disclosure of confidential or exempt information. 

11.38.6 Supplementary question 

At the discretion of the Chairman of that meeting, questioners may ask one 
supplementary question. 

11.48.7 Answers to questions 

8.7.1 The cChairman of the meeting, or at meetings of the Council the 
appropriate cCommittee chairman, shall respond to all valid questions. 

8.7.2 Replies to questions may be verbal, or at the discretion of the 
Chairman,  in writing, or by reference to a published document.   

8.7.3 Written Rreplies which are not provided at the meeting shall be 
reported to the next relevant meeting of the Committee and by publishinged 
them alongside the draft minutes when available and by circulating them .  
Responses will also be sent to all CouncillorsMembers. 

129. Petitions from the Public to Full Council 

129.1 Notice of Petition 

9.1.1 If a citizen wishes to present a petition to a Council meeting, notice 
must be given at least 10 working days before the meeting.  

9.1.2 Petitions to be debated at the Council Meeting will have been selected 
according to the Petitions Scheme (which is attached as Appendix D to the 
Constitution). 

129.2 Presentation of Petitions  

9.2.1 The petition organiser will be allowed 5 minutes to present the petition 
at the meeting.  

9.2.2 Only one person may speak to present a petition. 

9.2.3 The Council will then debate a single the petition for a maximum of 15 
minutes (if the petition has 1500 signatures or more). 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Page 56



Appendix C – Tracked Changes shown 

9.2.4 The Council’s response to the petition will depend on what the petition 
asks for and how many people have signed it, but it may include one or more 
of the following: 

(a) taking the action requested in the petition; 

(b) not taking the action requested in the petition; 

(c) considering the petition at a council meeting; 

(d) holding an inquiry into the matter; 

(e) undertaking research into the matter; 

(f) holding a public meeting; 

(g) holding a consultation; 

(h) holding a meeting with the petitioners; 

(i) calling a referendum; 

(j) referring the petition for consideration by other committees such as the 
Scrutiny Committee; 

(k) where the issue is one on which the Cabinet is required to make the 
final decision, the Council will decide whether to make 
recommendations to inform that decision; 

(l) the petition organiser will receive a written acknowledgement of receipt 
of their petition, details as to when and where their petition will be 
considered and a letter giving the outcome which will also be published 
on the Council website. 

12.59.3 Scope of Petitions 

9.3.1 The Member Services Manager may reject a petition if it: 

(a) does not qualify under the scheme; 

(b)    does not  i.e. it does not follow the Council’s guidelines for submitting a 
petition; 

(cb) it is vexatious, abusive or otherwise inappropriate; 

(dc) it is a petition qualifying under another enactment; 

(ed) it relates to a planning, licensing or other regulatory decision; 

 (e) it relates to a licensing decision; 

(f) it relates to any other matter relating to an individual or entity in respect 
of which that individual or entity has a right of recourse to a review or 
right of appeal conferred by or under any enactment. 

1310. Questions by from Members at full Council 

1310.1 Questions without notice Oon reports of the Cabinet or and 
Ccommittees 

At an Ordinary meeting of the full Council, other than the Annual meeting,  a 
Member of the Council may ask the Leader, Cabinet Members or the 
Chairman of a cCommittee any question without notice upon an item of the 
report of the Cabinet or a cCommittee when that item is being received or 
under consideration by the Council. 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Page 57



Appendix C – Tracked Changes shown 

103.2 Questions on notice at full Council. 

A Member of the Council may, if by not later than noon, one clear working 
day preceding any ordinary meeting of the Council, notice in writing has 
been given to the Chief Executive, ask the Chairman of the Council, or the 
Leader, the a Cabinet Member or the Chairman of any Committee any 
question on any matter in relation to which: 

(a) concerns the Council’s have powers or / duties or which otherwise affects 
the District;,  

(b) relates to matters on which the Council has or may determine a policy; 

(c) the Member has provided written notice of the question to the Chief 
Executive no later than noon, two clear days preceding the Council 
meeting; 

(d) that the subject matter of the particular question shall havehas first been 
the subject of discussedion at a meeting of the Cabinet or appropriate 
Committee or Sub-Committee and that, in the particular case the Member 
who seeks to ask the question is not satisfied with the adequacy of the 
answer contained in the relevant Minutes; and of the Cabinet or that 
Committee or Sub-Committee.   

(e) If any doubt arises as to whether the particular subject matter has been 
the subject of discussion at a meeting of the appropriate Committee or 
Sub-Committee this shall be determined by the Chairman of the Council 
whose decision in such regard shall not be open to challenge.the 
question is not (in the opinion of the Chairman taking account of the 
advice on the matter from the Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer or 
Member Services Manager) one which: 

i)         is scurrilous, improper, capricious, irrelevant or otherwise 
objectionable 

ii)         is substantially the same as a question which has been put at a 
meeting of the Council (or other meeting to which these rules 
apply) in the past six months; 

iii) requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt information 
unless the question is raised in closed session; 

iv) contains expressions of opinion; or 

i)v)         relates to questions of fact.  

103.3 Questions relating to urgent business 

A Member of the Council may, with the advance permission of the Chairman, 
put to him, or the Leader, a Cabinet Member or the Chairman of any  
Ccommittee any question relating to urgent business of which notice has not 
been given in accordance with paragraph 10.2(ca) above, provided that: 

(a)  the Chairman in his absolute discretion is satisfied that the matter being 
raised in such a question is of such urgency as to preclude the procedure 
inthat compliance with paragraph 10.2(ca) is precluded nor should its above 
being pursued and that he is also satisfied that it is not appropriate for the 
matter to await consideration be delayed until the next meeting of the 
Cabinet or the Committee; and  

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Page 58



Appendix C – Tracked Changes shown 

at the next meeting of the Cabinet or the appropriate Committee or Sub-
Committee and  

(b) provided also that a copy of any such question has been delivered to the 
Chief Executive no later than nine o'clock9am on the morning of the day 
before the Council Meeting. 

103.4 Order of Questions 

10.4.1 Questions under paragraph 10.2 and 103.3 above shall be taken at 
the appropriate point in the relevant Committee report or in the absence of 
such, at the Members’ Questions agenda item. 

10.4.2 Questions and written answers shall be printed in order of receipt and 
circulated amongst the Members at the commencement of the Council 
Meeting. and  

10.4.3 nNo discussion shall be allowed upon questions or answers save as 
is permitted under Rules 10.5 to 103.8 below. 

13.5 Content of Questions 

Questions under Rule 13.3 or 13.4 must, in the opinion of the Chairman: 

(a) contain no expressions of opinion; 

(b) relate to matters on which the Council has or may determine a policy; 

(c) not relate to questions of fact. 

If questions or supplementary questions are unsuitable in form, frivolous or 
derogatory to the dignity of the Council, the Chairman of the Council shall 
have the right to rule the matter void. 

10.5  Form of Response 

10.5.1 The Chief Executive shall arrange for copies of questions and 
answers to be sent to Members not present at the Meeting of the Council. 

10.5.2 An answer may take the form of: 

(a)  a direct oral answer at the meeting; 

(b) where the desired information is in a publication of the Council or other 
published work, a reference to that publication; or 

(c) where the reply cannot conveniently be given orally, a written answer 
circulated within 10 working days to the questioner and all Members. 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Page 59



Appendix C – Tracked Changes shown 

1310.6 7 Supplementary question 

One relevant supplementary question to an answer to a question on notice 
shall be allowed to the original questioner but may be disallowed or not 
answered if unless such supplementary question is disallowed by the 
Chairman of the Council considers it in breach of under paragraph 13.5 
10.2(e)of this Rule. 

103.78 Length of Speeches 

A Member asking a question under Rules 13.310.1 or to 13.4 10.3 and a 
Member answering such a question may speak for no longer than 3 three 
minutes unless the Chairman consents to a longer period. 

103.89 Time Allowed for Questions at Council Meetings 

10.8.1 The time allowed for consideration of all questions at full council 
which are submitted under Rule 13 10 shall not, without the consent of the 
Council, exceed 30 minutes. 

10.8.2 At the conclusion of the answer to the question under consideration at 
the expiry of 30 minutes (or such longer period to which the Council has 
consented) from the time when the first questioner started to speak, the 
Chairman shall continue with the meeting unless the Council resolves 
otherwise at the meeting. 

10.8.3 Any remaining questions shall be responded to in writing before the 
next ordinary meeting of the Council with the written answers to be 
forwarded to all CouncillorsMembers. 

114. Motions 

11.1 Motions on Notice 

114.1.1 Notice: 

 Except for motions which can be moved without notice under Rule 1511.7, 
written notice of every motion, must be delivered to the Chief Executive via 
Member Services at least 8 eight clear working days before the Council 
meeting at which it is to be considered.  

11.1.2 Record of Motions: Motions received will be entered in a record, in the 

order they are received, which is open to public inspection. and wWhere a 
motion is rejected, the record need only comprise a summary they are 
rejected giving reason(s) why it was rejected. 

14.211.1.3 Motion set out in summons:  

 The Chief Executive shall set out in the Summons for every meeting of the 
Council all Motions of which notice has been duly given in the order in which 
they have been received, unless: 

(a)The motion is rejected in accordance with Rule 11.5; or 

(b) Tthe Member giving such a notice intimated in writing, when giving it, that 
he/she proposed to move it at some later meeting, or has since withdrawn it 
in writing. 

14.311.1.4 Motion not moved:  

 Subject to 11.1.7 Iif a Motion thus set out in the Summons be is not moved 
either by a Member who gave notice thereof or by some other Member on his 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Page 60



Appendix C – Tracked Changes shown 

behalf it shall, unless postponed by consent resolution of the Council, be 
treated as withdrawn and shall not be moved without fresh notice. 

 

11.1.5 Speaking on the Motion: Those moving and seconding the Motion at the 

Council meeting shall be invited to speak on the Motion. In the event that the 
Motion stands referred to another body as provided for in 11.1.6 the mover (or 
in his absence, the seconder) of the Motion shall be invited to the relevant 
meeting to amplify the Motion, but without any right to vote except as a 
member of the Cabinet or relevant Committee.  

14.411.1.6 Automatic Reference to Committee:  

  

If the subject matter of any Motion, of which notice has been duly given comes within 
the province of the Cabinet, or a Committee or Policy Development Group, it 
shall, upon after being formally moved and seconded (with those  moving and 
seconding the motion having been given the opportunity being invited to 
speak at this pointon the Motion), either: 

(a)  stand referred to the Cabinet or the most relevant, Committee or Policy 
Development Group as the Chairman may determine for consideration and 
report; or  

(a)(b)  unless on an alternative proposition motion is being put forward and is 
accepted, be dealt within in accordance with that alternative motion.; and that 
the mover (or in his absence, the seconder) of the Motion should be invited to 
the meeting of the Cabinet, Committee or Policy Development Group to 
amplify the Motion, but without any right to vote except as a member of such 
Committee.  Provided that the Chairman may if he considers it convenient 
and conducive to the despatch of business allow the Motion to be dealt with 
at the meeting, at which it is brought forward. 

 

11.1.7 Consideration by full Council: The Chairman of Council may if he considers 

it convenient and conducive to the despatch of business allow the Motion to be dealt 
with at the meeting, at which it is brought forward. 

 

14.511.1.8  Scope of Motions on Notice:  

 Motions must: 

(a)  be about matters for which the Council has a responsibility or which affect the 
District; and  

(b)  not, in the opinion of the Chief Executive be out of order, illegal, irregular or 
improper. 

. 

11.1.9 If notice is given of any original motion that, in the opinion of the proper officer 
is out of order, illegal, irregular or impropera motion is not within scope, the Chief 
Executive shall as soon as is practicable, then the proper officer shall immediately 
submit such the notice of motion to the Chairman of the Council and it the motion 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Page 61



Appendix C – Tracked Changes shown 

shall not be accepted and nor placed on the agenda without his the Chairman’s 
sanction.   

11.1.10 In the event of non-acceptance, the proper officerChief Executive shall 
inform the member giving notice as soon as reasonably possible and statingof the 
reason(s) for the rejection. 

14.611.2 Motion on Notice to Rremove the Leader 

In order for such a motion to be carried it must have the support of the 
majority of those members voting and present in the room at the time the 
question was put. 

1511.3. Motions without Notice 

115.3.1 The following motions may be moved without notice: 

(a) to appoint a Chairman of the meeting at which the motion is moved; 

(b) in relation to the accuracy of the minutes; 

(c) to change the order of business in the agenda; 

(d) to adopt a recommendation on some other course of action arising from 
a report to the meeting or as a result of a petition submitted to the 
meeting or recommendation arising from  single issue debate 

(e) to refer something to an appropriate body or individual; 

(f) to appoint a committee or member arising from an item on the 
summons for the meeting; 

(g) to receive reports or adoption of recommendations of cCommittees or 
officers and any resolutions following from them; 

(h) to withdraw a motion which may be moved in accordance with this 
procedure rule; 

(i) to amend a motion which may be moved in accordance with this 
procedure rule, subject to the provisions of the Budget and Policy 
Framework Procedure Rules in relation to amendment of the Cabinet's 
proposals for the Council’s Budget and Policy Framework; 

(j) to proceed to the next business (such Motion may only be moved by a 
Councillor who has not spoken in the debate) 

(k) that the question be now put (such Motion may only be moved by a 
Councillor who has not spoken in the debate) 

(l) to adjourn a debate; 

(m) to adjourn a meeting; 

(n) to suspend a particular Council Procedure Rule; 

(o) to exclude the public and press in accordance with the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules; 

(p) Not to hear further a Member named under Rule 23.318.2 or excluded 
from the meeting under Rule 23.418.3; and 

(q) to give the consent of the Council where its consent is required by this 
Constitution. 

162. Rules of Debate 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Underline

Page 62



Appendix C – Tracked Changes shown 

12.1 No speeches may be made unless the appropriate Notice has been 
given and until the Motion is seconded; or the appropriate Notice has been 
given and is moved by the Chairman of the meeting. 

A Motion or Amendment shall not be discussed unless it has been proposed 
and seconded, and unless the appropriate Notice has been given:- 

(a) in the case of a Motion, in accordance with Rule 14; or 

(b) in the case of an Amendment (other than an Amendment moved in 
accordance with Rule 15), notice in writing of the Amendment shall 
have been delivered to the office of the Chief Executive of the District 
Council by no later than 9.30am on the day before the day of the 
meeting and a copy of it shall be circulated to each Member of the 
District Council by the Chief Executive at the commencement of the 
meeting at which it is to be discussed. 

Except that where the Chairman is satisfied that, in the context of the debate 
which has taken place, a further Amendment becomes necessary, he may at 
his discretion allow such further Amendment to be moved at the meeting.  
Any such further Amendment shall be put in writing and handed to the 
Chairman before it is discussed or put to the meeting. 

12.216.1 Seconder’s speech  

 When seconding a motion or amendment, a member may reserve their 
speech until later in the debate. 

16.212.3 Content and length of speeches 

12.3.1 Speeches must be directed to the question under discussion or to a 
personal explanation or point of order.   

12.3.2 No speech shall exceed: 

(a) Five minutes in the case of the mover of a Motion; 

(b) Three minutes in the case of the seconder; 

(c) Five minutes in the case of the Leader, the relevant Cabinet Member or 
the Chairman of a Committee dealing with the matters arising from 
committee reports except with the consent of the Chairman who shall 
have discretion to extend that time if it appears prudent in his 
judgement to do so; 

(d) Three minutes in all other cases except by consent of the Council; and. 

(e) When the Council’s annual budget is under discussion, the leader of 
each political group on the Council may speak for up to five minutes or 
such longer period as the Chairman shall allow.  

 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Page 63



Appendix C – Tracked Changes shown 

16.312.4 When a Member may speak again 

A member who has spoken on a motion may not speak again whilst it is the 
subject of debate, except: 

(a) to speak once on an amendment moved by another member; 

(b) to move a further amendment if the motion has been amended since 
he/she last spoke; 

(c) if his/her first speech was on an amendment moved by another 
member, to speak on the main issue (whether or not the amendment 
on which he/she spoke was carried); 

(d) in exercise of a right of reply; 

(e) on a point of order; and 

(f) by way of personal explanation. 

16.412.5 Amendments to motions 

An amendment to a motion must be relevant to the motion and will either be: 

(a) to refer the matter to an appropriate body or individual for consideration 
or reconsideration; 

i. to leave out words; 

ii. to leave out words and insert or add others; or 

iii. to insert or add words 

iv. as long as the effect of i)1 to 3iii) is not to negate the motion. 

(b) Only one amendment may be moved and discussed at any one 
time.  No further amendment may be moved until the amendment 
under discussion has been disposed of provided that the Chairman 
may permit two or more Aamendments to be discussed (but not voted 
on) together if circumstances suggest that this course of action would 
facilitate the proper conduct of the Council’s business. 

(c) If an amendment is not carried, other amendments to the original 
motion may be moved. 

(d) If an amendment is carried, the motion as amended takes the place of 
the original motion. This becomes the substantive motion to which any 
further amendments are moved. 

(e) After an amendment has been carried, the Chairman will read out the 
amended motion before accepting any further amendments, or if there 
are none, put it to the vote. 

 

 

16.512.6 Alteration of motion 

12.6.1A Member may alter a motion of which he/she has given notice with 
the consent of the meeting. The meeting’s consent will be signified without 
discussion. 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Page 64



Appendix C – Tracked Changes shown 

12.6.2 A Member may alter a motion which he/she has moved without notice 
with the consent of both the meeting and the seconder. The meeting’s 
consent will be signified without discussion. 

12.6.3 Only alterations which could be made as an amendment may be 
made.  

 

 

Page 65



Appendix C – Tracked Changes shown 

16.612.7       Withdrawal of motion 

12.7.1 A Member may withdraw a motion which he/she has moved with the 
consent of both the meeting and the seconder.  

12.7.2 The meeting’s consent will be signified without discussion.  

12.7.3 No member may speak on the motion after the mover has asked 
permission to withdraw it unless permission is refused. 

16.712.8       Right of reply 

12.8.1 The mover of a motion has a right to reply at the end of the debate on 
the motion, immediately before it is put to the vote. 

12.8.2 If an amendment is moved, the mover of the original motion has the 
right of reply at the close of the debate on the amendment, but may not 
otherwise speak on it. 

12.8.3 The mover of the amendment has no right of reply to the debate on 
his/her amendment. 

16.812.9 Motions which may be moved during debate 

When a motion is under debate, no other motion may be moved except the 
following procedural motions: 

(a) to withdraw a motion; 

(b) to amend a motion; 

(c) to proceed to the next business; 

(d) that the question be now put; 

(e) to adjourn a debate; 

(f) to adjourn a meeting; 

(g) to exclude the public and press in accordance with the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules; and 

(h) Not to hear further a Member named under Rule 23.318.2 or excluded 
from the meeting under Rule 23.418.3. 

16.912.10     Closure motions 

12.10.1 A Member may move, without comment, the following motions at the 
end of a speech of another Member; 

(a) to proceed to the next business; 

(b) that the question be now put; 

(c) to adjourn a debate; or 

(d) to adjourn a meeting. 

12.10.2 If a motion to proceed to next business is seconded and the 
Chairman thinks considers the item has been sufficiently discussed, he/she 
will give the mover of the original motion (if there is one) a right of reply and 
then put the procedural motion to the vote. 

12.10.3 If a motion that the question be now put is seconded and the 
Chairman thinks considers the item has been sufficiently discussed, he/she 
will put the procedural motion to the vote. If it is passed he/she will give the 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Page 66



Appendix C – Tracked Changes shown 

mover of the original motion (if there is one) a right of reply before putting 
his/her motion to the vote. 

12.10.4 If a motion to adjourn the debate or to adjourn the meeting is 
seconded and the Chairman thinks considers the item has not been 
sufficiently discussed and cannot reasonably be so discussed on that 
occasion, he/she will put the procedural motion to the vote without giving the 
mover of the original motion the right of reply. 

16.1012.11 Point of order 

A point of order is a request from a member to the Chairman to rule on an 
alleged irregularity in the procedure of the meeting.  A member may raise a 
point of order at any time. The Chairman will hear them immediately. A point 
of order may only relate to an alleged breach of procedure set out in these 
Council Rules of Procedure or the law. The member must indicate the rule or 
law and the way in which he/she considers it has been broken. The ruling of 
the Chairman on the matter will be final. 

16.1112.12 Personal explanation 

A member may make a personal explanation at any time. A personal 
explanation may only relate to some material part of an earlier speech by the 
member which may appear to have been misunderstood in the present 
debate. The ruling of the Chairman on the admissibility of a personal 
explanation will be final. 

1713. State of the District Debate 

1713.1 Calling of the debate 

The Leader may call a state of the District debate annually on a date to be 
agreed with the Chairman. 

1713.2 Form of the debate 

The Leader will decide the form of the debate with the aim of enabling the 
widest possible public involvement and publicity. This may include holding 
workshops and other events prior to or during the state of the District debate. 

1713.3 Chairing of the debate 

The debate will be chaired by the Chairman. 

1713.4 Results of the debate 

13.4.1 The results of the debate will be: 

(a) disseminated as widely as possible within the community and to 
agencies and organisations in the area; and 

(b) considered by the Leader in proposing the Budget and Policy 
Framework to the Council for the coming year. 

13.4.2 If the Leader fails to call a debate within nine months in any municipal 
year, it may be called by notice in writing to the Chief Executive signed by 
any 10 Members of the Council and that the debate shall be heard on the 
subject and form specified by those 10 Members.  

1814. Previous Decisions and Motions 

1814.1 Motion to rescind a previous decision 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold

Page 67



Appendix C – Tracked Changes shown 

A motion or amendment to rescind a decision made at a meeting of Council 
within the past six months cannot be moved unless the notice of motion is 
signed by at least 10 Members. 

1814.2 Motion similar to one previously rejected 

14.2.1 This Procedure Rule 14.2 shall not apply to Motions moved in 
pursuance of a recommendation of a Committee. 

14.2.2 A motion or amendment in similar terms to one that has been rejected 
at a meeting of Council in the past six months cannot be moved unless the 
notice of motion or amendment is signed by at least ten members.  

14.2.3 Once the motion or amendment is dealt with, no one can propose a 
similar motion or amendment for six months. 

Provided that the Procedure Rule shall not apply to Motions moved in 
pursuance of a recommendation of a Committee. 

 

1915. Voting 

1915.1 Majority 

Unless this Constitution provides otherwise, any matter will be decided by a 
simple majority of those members voting and present in the room at the time 
the question is put. 

1915.2 Chairman’s casting vote 

If there are equal numbers of votes for and against, the Chairman will have a 
second or casting vote. There will be no restriction on how the Chairman 
chooses to exercise a casting vote. 

1915.3 Method of Voting 

Unless a recorded vote is demanded under Rule 1915.4 the Chairman will 
take the vote by show of hands, or if there is no dissent, by the affirmation of 
the meeting. 

1915.4 Recorded vote 

If ten 10 members present at the meeting demand it, the names for and 
against the motion or amendment or abstaining from voting will be taken 
down in writing and entered into the minutes. 

1915.5 Right to require individual vote to be recorded 

Where any member requests it immediately after the vote is taken, their vote 
will be recorded in the minutes to show whether they voted for or against the 
motion or abstained from voting. 

1915.6 Voting on appointments 

15.6.1 If there are more than two people nominated for any position to be 
filled and there is not a clear majority of votes in favour of one person, then 
the name of the person with the least number of votes will be taken off the 
list and a new vote taken.  

15.6.2 The process will continue until there is a majority of votes for one 
person. 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Page 68



Appendix C – Tracked Changes shown 

1915.7 Voting on the Budget and Council Tax 

At a Budget meeting, the vote on any motion or amendment relating to the 
setting of the Budget (revenue and capital budget) and Council Tax or 
precept shall be by roll call and the names of Members who voted as for, 
against or in abstention to any such motion or amendment shall be recorded 
in the minutes of that meeting. 

2016. Minutes 

2016.1 Signing the minutes 

16.1.1 The Chairman will sign the minutes of the proceedings at the next 
suitable meeting.  

16.1.2 The Chairman will move that the minutes of the previous meeting be 
signed as a correct record.  

16.1.3 The only part of the minutes that can be discussed is their accuracy. 

16.2  No requirement to sign minutes of previous meeting at an Eextra-
ordinary meeting 

Where in relation to any meeting, the next meeting for the purpose of signing 
the minutes is a meeting called under paragraph 3 of Schedule 12 to the 
Local Government Act 1972 (an extraordinary meeting), then the next 
following meeting (being a meeting called otherwise than under that 
paragraph) will be treated as a suitable meeting for the purposes of 
paragraph 41(1) and (2) of Schedule 12 relating to signing of minutes. 

20.216.3 Form of minutes 

Minutes will contain all motions and amendments in the exact form and order 
the Chairman put them. 

21. Record of Attendance 

Every member of the Council attending a meeting of the Council, the 
Cabinet, Scrutiny Committee, Audit Committee, Policy Development Groups, 
Committees and Sub-Committees of which he/she is a member, shall sign 
his/her name in the attendance book or sheet provided for that purpose. 

All members present during the whole or part of a meeting must sign their 
names on the attendance book or sheets before the conclusion of every 
meeting to assist with the record of attendance. 

2217. Exclusion of Public 

Members of the public and press may only be excluded either in accordance 
with the Access to Information Procedure Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution 
or Rule 24 19 (Disturbance by Public) or otherwise permissible in law. 

2318. Members’ Conduct 

2318.1 Speaking at meetings 

18.1.1 When a Member speaks at full Council he/she must address the 
meeting through the Chairman.  

18.1.2 If more than one member signifies their intention to speak, the 
Chairman will ask one to speak.  

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: No underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold

Page 69



Appendix C – Tracked Changes shown 

18.1.3 Other Members must remain silent whilst a Member is speaking 
unless they wish to make a point of order or a point of personal explanation. 

23.2 Chairman speaking 

When the Chairman stands during a debate, any member speaking at the 
time must stop and sit down.  The meeting must be silent. 

23.318.2 Member not to be heard further 

18.2.1 If a Member persistently disregards the ruling of the Chairman by 
behaving improperly or offensively or deliberately obstructs business, the 
Chairman may move that the member not be heard further.  

18.2.2 If seconded, the motion will be voted on without discussion. 

23.418.3  Member to leave the meeting 

18.3.1 If the Member continues to behave improperly after such a motion is 
carried, the Chairman may move that either the Member leaves the meeting 
or that the meeting is adjourned for a specified period.  

18.3.2 If seconded, the motion will be voted on without discussion. 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Page 70



Appendix C – Tracked Changes shown 

23.518.4 General disturbance 

If there is a general disturbance making orderly business impossible, the 
Chairman may adjourn the meeting for as long as he/she thinks necessary. 

2419. Disturbance by the Public 

2419.1 Removal of member of the public 

19.1.1 If a member of the public interrupts proceedings, the Chairman will 
warn the person concerned.  

19.1.2. If they continue to interrupt, the Chairman will order their removal 
from the meeting room. 

2419.2 Clearance of part of meeting room 

If there is a general disturbance in any part of the meeting room open to the 
public, the Chairman may call for that part to be cleared. 

2520. Suspension and Amendment of Council Procedure Rules 

2520.1 Suspension 

All of these Council Rules of Procedure except Rules 19.55.3, 20.215.5, and 
27 16.3 may be suspended by motion on notice or without notice if at least 
one half of the whole number of members of the Council are present. 
Suspension can only be for the duration of the meeting.  

2520.2 Amendment 

Any motion to add to, vary or revoke these Council Rules of Procedure will, 
when proposed and seconded, stand adjourned without discussion to the 
next ordinary meeting of the Council unless the amendment is the subject of 
a report from the Standards Committee. 

26. Application to Committees and Sub-Committees 

All of the Council Rules of Procedure apply to meetings of full Council.  

The Rules which apply to meetings of the Cabinet (except Rule 4), 
Committees and Sub-Committees are as follows: 

(a) Rule 4 – Appointment of substitute members 

(b)    Rule 5 – Time and Place of Meetings 

(c) Rule 6 – Notice and Summons to Meeting 

(d) Rule 7 – Chairing of the Meeting 

(e) Rule 8 – Quorum 

(f) Rule 11 – Public Question Time 

(g) Rule 16 – Rules of Debate 

(h) Rule 19 – Voting (with the exception of 19.4 and 19.6) 

(i) Rule 20.1 – Signing the Minutes 

(j) Rule 21 – Record of Attendance 

(k) Rule 22 – Exclusion of Public 

(l) Rule 23 – Members Conduct 

(m) Rule 24 – Disturbance by Public 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Page 71



Appendix C – Tracked Changes shown 

(n) Rule 25 – Suspension of Procedure Rule 

 

In applying Rule 16 to meetings of the Cabinet, Committees and Sub-
Committees, Rules 16.4, (content and length of speeches) and 16.5 (when a 
member may speak again) shall not apply. 

27. Interpretation of Procedure Rules 

The ruling of the Chairman as to the construction or application of any of 
these Procedure Rules, or as to any proceedings of the Council, shall not be 
challenged at any meeting of the Council. 

 

Page 72


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 Task and Finish Group (Council Procedure Rules Review)
	APPENDIX A - consultee responses, 19/10/2022 Standards Committee
	APPENDIX B - Amended council procedure rules 10 June 2020, 19/10/2022 Standards Committee
	Appendix C - MDL tracked changes KT proposed to CPR


